

February 2022



A Peer Reviewed Educational Journal of

# ST. THOMAS COLLEGE OF TEACHER EDUCATION

MYLACOMPU, IDUKKI DISTRICT, KERALA-685 608 www.stthomascollegemylacompu.org e-mail: stmprincipal123@gmail.com

# **MANAGING EDITOR**

# Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine

Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# **CHIEF EDITOR**

# Dr. C. C. Kurian

Associate Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

### **CONSULTANT EDITORS**

# Prof. (Dr.) T. V. Thulasidharan

School of Pedagogical Sciences, M. G. University, Kottayam.

# Dr. Vijay Grover

Associate Professor, DAV College of Education Abohar, Punjab.

# **ASSOCIATE EDITOR**

# Rev. Dr. Johnson Mathew

Vice Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# **ASSISTANT EDITORS**

# Dr. Pushpamma C. Vadakkel

Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# Dr. Shimna Paul

Associate Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# Mr. Francis K. J.

Assistant Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# Mrs. Lincymol Mathew

Assistant Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# **TECHNICAL ASSISTANT**

# Mr. Francis N. V.

Assistant Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

# **TYPE SETTING AND LAYOUT**

IT Department, St. Alphonsa College, T. B. Junction, Thodupuzha.



# SANTHOM JOURNAL OF EDU. RACE

Volume: 7 February 2022

Issue : 1

**Annual Subscription: Rs. 250** 

Printed and Published by Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine on behalf of Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu P.O, Thodupuzha, Idukki District, Kerala-685 608 and printed at Fine Offset Press, Market Road, Near Vyapara Bhavan Building, Thodupuzha, Idukki, Kerala-685 584 and published by Princiapl, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu P.O, Thodupuzha, Idukki District, Kerala-685 608.

**EDITOR: Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine** 

# SANTHOM JOURNAL OF EDU. RACE

Volume 7 : Issue 1 : February 2022



A Peer Reviewed Educational Journal of
ST. THOMAS COLLEGE OF TEACHER EDUCATION
Mylacompu, Thodupuzha, Idukki, Kerala, India - 685 608
www.stthomascollegemylacompu.org
stmprincipal123@gmail.com

# Statement showing ownership and other particulars about SANTHOM JOURNAL OF EDU. RACE

Place of Publication : St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu,

Thodupuzha, Idukki, Kerala.

Periodicity of Publication : Annual

Managing Editor : Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine

Chief Editor : Dr. C. C. Kurian

Printer & Publisher : Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine, Principal, St. Thomas

College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu, Idukki.

Nationality : Indian

Address & Ownership : Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education,

Mylacompu, Idukki.

Printed at : Fine Offset Press,

Market Road, Near Vyabhar Bhavan Building,

Thodupuzha, P.O., Idukki District,

Kerala - 685584.

I, Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine, Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu, Idukki, Kerala, do hereby declare that the particulars given above are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Sd/-

Sr. Dr. Christina Augustine
Managing Editor & Publisher
Santhom Journal of EDU. RACE

# **EDITOR'S NOTE**

Educational research plays a vital role in the overall development of pedagogy, learning programmes, and policy formulation. The primary purpose of educational research is to expand the existing body of knowledge by providing solutions to different problems in pedagogy occurring while improving teaching and learning practices.

Pedagogy attains much attention as it provides teachers and others engaged in education an insight into the best practices for a class room setting. It allows them to understand how different students learn so they can tailor their lessons to suit these needs. Consequently, the quality of their teaching will be enhanced as it will be well received by the students.

Considering the paramount priority of pedagogy and the highly countable contributions of educational research to the innovations in the domain of pedagogy we think it is desirable to do, at least as much as we can, to disseminate the new research findings of education to all engaged in the educative process. It is based on this objective the present issue of Santhom Journal of Educational Researches and Curriculum Enrichments (Santhom Journal of Edu. RACE) is published.

This issue contains 12 articles pertaining to different horizons of education, especially related to teaching, learning and educational psychology. Among them, Influence of Parental Aspiration on Academic Stress, Safety and Rights of Women, Blended Learning, Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback, Metacognitive Awareness, Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning, Behavioural Problems of Orphan Students, Democratic Attitude among Higher Secondary School Students, Inclusive Education, SQ3R Method, Perceived Loneliness and Legal Literacy Awareness are included.

We expect that all these articles will help teachers, teacher educators, educational administrators and all others involved in the field of education, especially at school level to improve their specialized knowledge for creating effective teaching and evaluation process.

# Invitation for Articles / Research Papers

Authors are invited to contribute articles on contemporary issues in education in general and Indian education in particular for publication in Santhom Journal of Edu. RACE.

The articles may be sent as an e-mail attachment in MS Word to: stmprincipal123@gmail.com. Also send three printed / typed copies to :

The Chief Editor
Santhom Journal of EDU. RACE
St. Thomas College of Teacher Education
Mylacompu P. O., Thodupuzha,
Idukki, Kerala, India. Pin - 685608

The ideas and views expressed in the articles are not necessarily those of the institution.

Chief Editor
Santhom Journal of EDU. RACE

# **CONTENTS**

1.	Influence of Parental Aspiration on Academic Stress among Higher Secondary 09 School Students
	Nirmal Seban & Prof. (Dr.) T. V. Thulasidharan
2.	Protecting and Respecting the Safety and Rights of Women: An Analysis of
	Dr. T.C. Thankachan & Dr. Roselit Michael
3.	Blended Learning : An Effective Method for Teaching Mathematics
4.	Effectiveness of Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback on Achievement
_	
5.	Metacognitive Awareness and Learning Styles among Prospective Teachers
6.	Effectiveness of Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach 44 on Science Process Skills among Secondary School Students  Megha Varghese & Dr. Sujithran P.
7.	Organizational Climate and Behavioural Problems among Orphan Students of 51 Secondary Schools Rev. Dr. Shibu Luke
8.	Relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among
9.	Inclusive Education- Educational Rights of Children with Special Needs (CWSN) 69  Dr. Suresh Kumar. K

10	Effectiveness of SQ3R Method on Achievement in Social Studies among
	Seena M. A. & Rev. Dr. Johnson Mathew
11.	Relationship between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of
	George Thomas
12	Legal Literacy Awareness among Secondary School Students

# Influence of Parental Aspiration on Academic Stress among Higher Secondary School Students

# Nirmal Seban

(Former M. Ed. Student, School of Pedagogical Sciences, M.G. University, Kottayam)

# Dr. T. V. Thulasidharan

(Professor, School of Pedagogical Sciences, M.G. University, Kottayam)

### Abstract

It has been found that adolescents are influenced in their career choice by various socio-demographic factors which include the family, the school and the peer group. However, among all the factors which influence an adolescent's choice, the role of parents is noteworthy. Consciously or unconsciously most parents aspire for their children to choose a particular career in life. Their aspirations are reflected in their beliefs as they want their child to choose a particular career which they aspire and this belief in turn gets reflected in their resultant behavior concerning their child's career. The present investigation aims at studying the influence of parental aspirations on academic stress of secondary school students. For this, normative survey method was employed. The sample consists of 400 higher secondary school students and their parents. The findings of the study revealed that there exist a moderate positive significant Relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students.

Key words: Adolescence, Influence, Career Aspirations, Academic Stress etc.

# Introduction

Adolescence is said to be the most important period of human life. It is a transitional period from childhood to adulthood when the individual experiences many anxieties, choice of career being one among the many. Choosing the right career is a very important aspect of the development in adolescents.

It has been found that adolescents are influenced in their career choice by various socio-demographic factors which include the family, the school and the peer group. However, among all the factors which influence an adolescent's choice, the role of parents

is noteworthy and it has been substantiated by various research studies that parents have a key role to play in the career goal development of their children. Parents are influential figures in an adolescents' life with whom they become exposed to various career opportunities and implied parental aspirations.

# Significance of the Study

Parental aspirations refer to the hopes, dreams and wishes they have for their children. Consciously or unconsciously most parents aspire for their children to choose a particular career in life. Their aspirations are reflected in their beliefs as they want their child to choose a particular career which they

aspire and this belief in turn gets reflected in their resultant behavior concerning their child's career. All adolescents are influenced by their parental aspirations though in varying degrees while deciding upon their career. Some may be highly influenced; others to a moderate degree and some may be less influenced by their aspiring parents while making their career choice. It must be mentioned that the degree of influence of an adolescent by his or her parental aspiration may have both a positive aspect and a negative aspect. The various traits of parental behaviors such as communication, involvement and providing the necessary materials and resources and the like may encourage the adolescent to set high aspirations for himself and have prosperous and fulfilling careers. On the other hands, a child may be influenced by his parental aspirations in a negative way by selecting a particular career so as not to disappoint his parents, in the process pushing his own aspirations, likes and dislikes and happiness to the background. Some children on the other hand may chose careers without being definite about the influence of their parents' aspirations.

# Statement of the Problem

The present study is entitled as Influence of Parental Aspiration on Academic Stress among Higher Secondary School Students

# **Definition of Key Terms**

The important terms used in the title of the study are defined below.

# Influence

Influence here refers to the effect that parental aspirations have on the career choice of adolescents.

# **Parental Aspiration**

Parental aspiration here refers to the ambitions of parents for their children. Aspirations refer to ideal goals or ambitions, not necessarily reflecting attainable goals.

# **Academic Stress**

It is the tension, biological and psychological relating to the amount of works and pressure given by the academic life as perceived by the students.

# **Higher Secondary School Students**

Higher secondary school students are those students studying in standard XI and XII in higher secondary schools. In the present study the plus one and plus two students of Kerala were selected.

# Variables of the Study

The variable of the study are Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress.

# Objectives of the Study

The objectives of the study were:

- To find out extent of Parental Aspiration among higher secondary school students for the total sample and relevant sub samples.
- To find out extent of Academic Stress of higher secondary school students for the total sample and relevant sub samples.
- 3. To find the relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress among higher secondary students for the total sample and relevant subsamples.

# Hypotheses of the Study

The following hypotheses were formulated for the study.

- There is significant difference in the Parental Aspiration of higher secondary school students based on:
  - a. Locale- Rural / Urpan
  - b. Type of Institution- Government / Aided

- There is significant difference in the Academic Stress of higher secondary school students based on:
  - a. Type of Institution-Government / Aided
  - b. Locale Rural / Urban
- There is significant relationship between Aspiration of Parents and Academic Stress among higher secondary students.
- There is significant relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress among higher secondary students for the relevant sub samples.

# Methodology in Brief

In the present investigation, normative survey method was employed by the investigator. Stratified random sampling technique was used for selecting the sample, by giving due weightage to the factors like locale of school and management of school.

# Sample for the Study

The sample consists of 400 higher secondary students and their parents from

Ernakulum, Kottayam and Idukki districts in Kerala state.

# Tools Used for the Study

The following tools were employed for gathering data from higher secondary school students.

- Academic Stress Scale, prepared standardized by Raji and Thulasidharan (2013).
- Parental Aspiration Inventory prepared and standardized by the investigator with the help of supervising teacher.

# Statistical Techniques used for the Study

The investigator used : Mean, Median, Mode, Standard deviation, Skewness, Kurtosis and Karl Pearson's Co-efficient of Correlation

# **Analysis and Interpretation**

# Parental Aspirations of Higher Secondary School Students

Parental Aspiration scores were collected and the measures of central tendency, dispersion, skewness, and kurtosis were calculated. Its details are given in table 1.

Table 1

Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis of Scores on Parental Aspiration for Total Sample

Variable	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Parental Aspiration	400	108.06	105	19.60	0.331	-0.851

The table shows the arithmetic mean for the total sample is 108.06 and standard deviation is 19.60. The maximum possible score in Parental Aspiration is 175 and the least is 35. This shows that the Parental Aspiration of parents of Higher Secondary School Students is found at an average level. The value of median obtained 105 which shows that 50 percent of the parents of Higher Secondary School Students had scored above

105. The distribution is positively skewed since the value of skewness is 0.331. This means the number of students who got high scores was comparatively lower than those who got the low scores in the group; it indicates that scores are massed at the low end. Kurtosis of the scores is -0.851 which is less than the normal value 0.263. Therefore the distribution is platykurtic.

# Parental Aspiration of Higher Secondary School Students based on Locale

In this section the Parental Aspiration scores of Higher Secondary School Students

from rural and urban area were separately found out and calculated arithmetic mean, median, standard deviation, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 2

Table 2
Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness and Kurtosis of Scores on Parental Aspiration based on Locale

Locale	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Urban	200	113.62	120	19.52	0.245	-0.717
Rural	200	102.51	99	18.04	0.380	-1.310

This table shows the arithmetic mean for urban is 113.62 and that for rural is 102.51 and standard deviations are 19.52 and 18.04 respectively. This shows that the Parental Aspiration of parents of higher secondary students from schools in urban area is higher than rural area. The value of median obtained for urban group is 120 and that for rural is 99 which shows that 50 percent of the rural group students had scored above 120 and 50 percent of urban group scored above 99. Both the distributions are positively skewed since the values of skewness are 0.245 and 0.380. This means the number of students who got high score was comparatively lower than those who got the low scores in the group. It indicates that scores are massed at the low end. Kurtosis of the scores is - 0.717 for urban group and -1.310 for rural group. Both are less than the normal value 0.263. Therefore the distributions are platykurtic.

# Parental Aspiration of Higher Secondary School Students based on Type of Institution

In this section the Parental Aspiration scores of Parents of Higher Secondary School Students studying in Govt. and Aided Schools were separately found out and calculated arithmetic mean, median, standard deviation, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 3

Table 3
Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis of Score on Parental Aspiration based on Type of Institution

Type of Management	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Government	200	96.2	92	13.89	0.812	-0.457
Aided	200	119.93	123	17.14	-0.159	-0.331

From this table it can be seen that the arithmetic mean for Government school is 96.2

and that for aided school is 119.93 and standard deviations are 13.89 and 17.14 respectively. This

shows that the Parental Aspiration of government school is lower aided school. The value of median obtained for government group is 92 and that for aided is 123 which shows that 50 percent of the government students had scored above 92 and 50 percent of aided group scored above 123. The distribution of Govt. School is positively skewed and for aided negatively skewed, since the values of skewness are 0.812 and -0.159. The case of Govt. school the number of students who got high scores was comparatively lower than those who got the low scores in the group. The case of Aided school the number of students who got

high scores was comparatively higher than those who got the low scores in the group. Kurtosis of the scores is -0.457 for government group and -0.331 for aided group. Government and aided is less than the normal value 0.263, therefore the distributions are platykurtic.

# Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students

Academic Stress scores were collected and calculated the measures of central tendency, dispersion, skewness, and kurtosis. The details are given in table 4.

Table 4

Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis of Scores on Academic Stress for Total Sample

Variable	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Academic Stress	400	137.08	142	20.57	-0.010	-0.472

The table shows the arithmetic mean for the total sample is 137.08 and standard deviation is 20.57. The maximum possible score in Academic Stress questions is 220 and the least is 44. This shows that the Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students is found at an average level. The value of median obtained 142 which shows that 50 percent of the Higher Secondary School Students had scored above 142. The distribution is negatively skewed since the value of skewness is -0.010. This means the number of students who got high scores was

comparatively higher than those who got the low scores in the group. Kurtosis of the scores is - 0.472 which is less than the normal value 0.263. Therefore the distribution is platykurtic.

# Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students based on Type of Institution

In this section the Academic Stress scores of students studying in Govt. and Aided Schools were separately found out and calculated arithmetic mean, median, standard deviation, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 5.

Table 5 are given in the table 5.

Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis of Score on Academic Stress Based on Type of Institution

Type of Institution	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Government	200	131.83	139	19.24	-0.188	-1.26
Aided	200	142.16	148	19.74	-0.092	-0.146

From this table it can be seen that the arithmetic mean for Government school students is 131.83 and that for aided school students is 142.16 and standard deviations are 19.24 and 19.74 respectively. This shows that the Academic Stress of government school students is lower than aided school students. The value of median obtained for government group is 139 and that for aided is 148 which shows that 50 percent of the government students had scored above 139 and 50 percent of aided group scored above 148. Both the distributions are negatively skewed since the values of skewness are -0.188 and -0.092. This means the number of students who got high scores was comparatively higher than those who got the low scores in the group. Kurtosis of the scores is -1.261 for government group and -0.146 for aided group. Government and aided is less than the normal value 0.263, therefore the distributions are platykurtic.

# Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students based on Locale

In this section the Academic Stress scores of students studying in schools from rural and urban area were separately found out and calculated arithmetic mean, median, standard deviation, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 6.

Table 6
Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness and Kurtosis of Scores on Academic Stress based on Locale

Locale	N	AM	Md	SD	Sk	Ku
Rural	200	132.7	140	20.22	-0.089	-0.761
Urban	200	141.45	145.5	19.97	0.086	-0.399

This table shows the arithmetic mean for rural is 132.7 and that for urban is 141.45 and standard deviations are 20.22 and 19.97 respectively. This shows that the Academic Stress of students from schools in rural area is lower than urban area. The value of median obtained for rural group is 140 and that for urban is 145.5 which shows that 50 percent of the rural group students had scored above 140 and 50 percent of urban group scored above 145.5 The distribution of Urban area is positively skewed and for Rural area negatively skewed, since the values of skewness are 0.086 and -0.089. The case of urban area the number of students who got

high scores was comparatively lower than those who got the low scores in the group. The case of rural area the number of students who got high scores was comparatively higher than those who got the low scores in the group. Kurtosis of the scores is -0.761 for rural group and -0.399 for urban group. Both are less than the normal value 0.263. Therefore the distributions are platykurtic.

# Relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress

The calculation of coefficient of correlation is done by Karl Pearson's product moment method.

# Relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students

The relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress is studied by computing 'r' value and its details are given in table 7.

Table 7
Result of Test of Significance of 'r'
between Parental Aspiration and Academic
Stress of Higher Secondary School
Students for Total Sample

Variables	N	df	r
Parental Aspiration	400	398	0.407
Academic Stress	400	390	0.407

The obtained value of 'r' is 0.407, which means there is positive relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of higher secondary school students. Since the relationship is positive it indicates that any increase or decrease in the scores of Parental Aspiration will be followed by increase or decrease in Academic Stress.

As the r value is greater than the table value it can be inferred that there is significant relationship between the Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of higher secondary school students.

# Relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students Based on Type of Institution

The relationships between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Government and Aided students are studied by computing 'r and tested for significance using t- value. Table 8 contains the details

Table 8

Result of Test of Significance of 'r' between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students based on Type of Institution

Type of Institution	N	df	r
Government	200	198	-0.176
Aided	200	198	0.138

The obtained value of 'r' is -0.176 for Government students and 0.138 for aided students, which means there is negative relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Govt. higher secondary school students based on type of institution. This relationship is negative. It indicates that any increase or decrease in the scores of Parental Aspiration will be followed by decrease or increase in Academic Stress.

As the r value calculated for Government schools is greater than the table value at 0.05 level it is concluded that there exists significant nagative correlation between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Government higher secondary school students.

In the case of Aided schools, there is positive relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Aided higher secondary school students

The r value calculated for aided schools is less than the table value at 0.05 level. Hence it is concluded that there is no significant correlation between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of aided higher secondary school students.

 Relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of Higher Secondary School Students based on Locale

The relationships between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of rural and urban students are studied by computing 'r' value and table 9 contains the details.

Table 9

Result of Test of Significance of 'r'
between Parental Aspiration and Academic
Stress of Higher Secondary School
Students Based on Locale

Groups	N	df	r
Rural	200	198	0.75
Urban	200	198	0.1

The obtained value of 'r' is 0.75 for rural students and 0.1 for urban students, which means that there is positive relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of higher secondary school students based on locale of institution. As the relationships are positive it indicates that any increase or decrease in the scores of Parental Aspiration will be followed by increase or decrease in Academic Stress scores.

Since the r value for rural students is grater than the theoretical value and it is less than for the urban students, it is concluded that there exists a significant relationship in the case of rural students and no significant relation in the case of urban students.

# Major Findings of the Study

 The Parental Aspiration of higher secondary school students are above average.

- The Parental Aspiration of aided higher secondary school students is greater than that of government schools.
- The Parental Aspiration of higher secondary school students of urban area is greater than that of the rural area.
- The Academic Stress of higher secondary school students (Total Sample) are above average.
- The Academic Stress of students of higher secondary aided schools is greater than that of the government schools.
- The Academic Stress of higher secondary urban students is greater than that of the rural students.
- There exist a moderate positive significant relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of higher secondary school students.
- There exist a low significant negative relationship between Parental Aspiration and Academic Stress of students of government higher secondary schools. But no significant difference for aided school studencts.

# Implications of the Study

The present study was basically intended to find out the influence of parental aspiration on academic stress among higher secondary school students. The findings clearly revealed that the two factors are interdependent. Therefore the parents as well as the children should know the strengths, weakness, taste and aptitude of the child. Choosing a career is an important decision in life. It should be done with enough care. Wrong selection results in failure. The present study highlights that the career should be choosen according to the aptitude of

the child. Career focused learning is more successful and joyful than the other. The parents can share their views to the child but do not force them to act like. Let them decide what they want to be. Parents should act like facilitators for the better achievements of the child.

# References

- Alika, I.H. (2010). Parental and Peer Group Influence as correlates of Career Choice in Humanities Among Secondary School Students in Edo, State, Nigeria. Journal of Research in Education and Society. 1(1).
- Ancey, Sangeetha, Victor Paul, S. (2015). A Study on Factors Influencing today's youth career choice. International Journal of Physical and Social Science 5 (1), 496-511.
- Bakshi, A., Gandhi, Hetvi N., Shah, Riddhi., Maru, Kinjal (2012). Influences on Career Choices as Perceived by Youth in Mumbai Indian Journal of Career and Livelihood Planning. 1(1).
- Best, John, W. (2000). Research in education. New Delhi: Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd.
- Bishnoi, Meenakhi, Kumar, Manjeet (2014).
   A Study of Career Maturity in relation to Level of Aspiration in Adolescents. Darpan International Research Analysis, DIRA 1(8). ISSN: 2321-3094
- Bregman, George, Killen, Melanie (1999).
   Adolescents and Young Adult's Reasoning about Career Choice and the Role of Parental Influence. Journal of Research on Adolescence,
- Chutter, Chance (2010). The effects of Parental Influence on their Children's Career choice B.A. Fort Hays State University, A Report: Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.

- Crrewal, P.S. (1990). Methods of Statistical Analysis: (2nd Ed) New Delhi, Sterling Publishers Pvt Ltd.
- Devasia, Shine (2015). Relationship between Emotional Adjustment, Academic Stress and Locus of Control among Institutionalized Children. Unpublished M.Phil. Thesis, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam.
- Dietrich, Julia, Kracke, Barbel (2009). Career Specific Parental Behaviours in Adolescent's Development. Journal of Vocational Behaviour 75(2), 109-119.
- Garret, H.E.(2000). Statistics in Psychology and Education: (12h Ed) Bobay, Vakils feffer and Simons.
- Hayes, De Marquis (2011). Predicting parental home and school involvement in high school African American adolescents. High School Journal 94 (4), 154166.
- Hernandez, Angela Valentina (2008). The effectiveness of parental involvement in the academic success of Latino students in middle school. PROQUEST 69 (3) 929.
- Immanuel, Zarine, Kenneth, Kalyani (2011).
   Factors Influencing Career Choice Among Adolescents. International Journal of Research in Commerce and Management. 2 (10).
- Otto, Luther B. (2000). Youth perspectives on parental career influence. Journal of Career Development, 27(2), 111-118.
- Snyder-Hogan and Lindsey (2010). The role of parental involvement in the academic achievement of Latino Youth.

# Protecting and Respecting the Safety and Rights of Women: An Analysis of NIRBHAYA Project

Dr. T. C. Thankachan

(Principal & Associate Professor, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Pala, Kerala)

Dr. Roselit Michael

(Principal, CPAS College of Teacher Education, Erattupetta, Kerala)

# **Abstract**

To uphold the constitutional mandate, the state has enacted various legislative measures intended to ensure equal rights, to counter social discrimination and various forms of violence and atrocities and to provide support services especially for working women. India is a country which is always known to empower women to the maximum extent. NIRBHAYA is an initiative of the Kerala state government, to guarantee security for women and children. Through the innovative scheme, the government aims to rectify atrocities against women and children and make the state women friendly where women can safely travel even at midnight. Nirbhaya (fearless) mainly focuses on a three-point agenda - prevention, prosecution and protection. The major objective of the study was to find out the influence of women safety programs conducted by various local self governments with special reference to NIRBHAYA Project. The data was collected from a sample of 30 girls who attended NIRBHAYA programme at Mutholy Grama Panchayath of Kottayam district. The result shows that huge number of adolescent girls have opined that the project influence them, especially with respect to the safety of women and girl children.

**Key words**: Rights of women, Safety of women, Women empowerment, NIRBHAYA, Legal provisions, etc.

### Introduction

To uphold the constitutional mandate, the state has enacted various legislative measures intended to ensure equal rights, to counter social discrimination and various forms of violence and atrocities and to provide support services especially for working women. Although women may be victim of any of the crime such as 'murder', 'robbery', 'cheating' etc, the crimes, which are directed specifically against women, are characterized as 'crime against women'. India is a country

which is always known to empower women to the maximum extent. Even our seas and oceans have been named after women. We come from a country which respects mom more than God himself. But the present day scenario where rapes and murders and abductions are on an increase tells us a different story. True there are lots of laws protecting the rights of women but they are not as effective as of now just because of the simple fact that there is no such awareness amongst people and the law is not

intimating enough to scare the wrong doers. Women are the wealth of the nation and it becomes our sacred duty to protect them against all harm. There are several theories for the safety of women.

# The Rights and Safety of Women in India

Although all laws are not gender specific, the provisions of law affecting women significantly have been reviewed periodically and amendments carried out to keep pace with the emerging requirements. The crimes identified under the Indian Penal Code (IPC) are; Rape (Sec. 376 IPC), Kidnapping & Abduction for different purposes (Sec. 363-373 IPC), Homicide for dowry, dowry death or their attempts (Sec. 302/304- B IPC), Torture, both mental and physical (Sec. 498-A IPC), Molestation (Sec. 354 IPC), Sexual harassment (Sec. 509 IPC), Importation of girls (up to 21 years of age), etc.

The Constitution of India not only grants equality to women but also empowers the State to adopt measures of positive discrimination in favour of women for neutralizing the cumulative socio economic, education and political disadvantages faced by them. Fundamental Rights, among others, ensure equality before the law and equal protection of law; prohibits discrimination against any citizen on grounds of religion, race, caste, sex or place of birth, and guarantee equality of opportunity to all citizens in matters relating to employment. Articles 14, 15, 15(3), 16, 39(a), 39(b), 39(c) and 42 of the Constitution are of specific importance in this regard.

In January 1992, the Government of India set-up this statutory body with a specific mandate to study and monitor all

matters relating to the constitutional and legal safeguards provided for women, review the existing legislation to suggest amendments wherever necessary, etc. The objective of the NCW is to represent the rights of women in India and to provide a voice for their issues and concerns. The subjects of their campaigns have included dowry, politics, religion, equal representation for women in jobs, and the exploitation of women for labour. They have also discussed police abuses against women.

The 73rd Constitutional Amendment Acts passed in 1992 by Parliament ensure one-third of the total seats for women in all elected offices in local bodies whether in rural areas or urban areas. The Amendment Act of 1992 contains provision for devolution of powers and responsibilities to the panchayats, both for the preparation of economic development plans and social justice, as well as for implementation in relation to 29 subjects listed in the eleventh schedule of the constitution. Not less than one-third of the total number of seats reserved for women. One-third of the seats reserved for SCs and STs also reserved for women. One-third offices of chairpersons at all levels reserved for women.

# National Policy for the Empowerment of Women, 2001

The goal of this policy is to bring about the advancement, development and empowerment of women. Ministry of Human Resource Development, Department of Women & Child Development, Govt. of India has circulated the National Policy for the Empowerment of Women 2001 for implementation. The policy will be widely

disseminated so as to encourage active participation of all stakeholders for achieving its goals.

# Need and Significance of the Study on NIRBHAYA Project (2013)

It is an initiative of the Kerala state government, to guarantee security for women and children. Through the innovative scheme, the government aims to rectify atrocities against women and children and make the state women friendly where women can safely travel even at midnight. Nirbhaya (fearless) mainly focuses on a three-point agenda prevention, prosecution and protection. This comprehensive policy and action plan with multi-stakeholder convergence will also cover legal reforms and the creation of a corpus fund for rehabilitation and relief. In prevention, major areas of intervention lie in sensitizing society, empowering vulnerable groups, targeting contributing factors such as alcoholism, gender discrimination and consumerism. The scheme also aims at providing proper rehabilitation facilities to help the victim to heal, recover, empower and reintegrate back into society. Prosecution is another area of intervention where strong laws have to be formulated to ensure rigorous punishment for the culprits which will be a deterrent for such criminals. The policy focuses on child abuse, commercial sexual exploitation and sex trafficking, which constitute the worst forms of sexual violence in the state.

This study gives an immense help to the educational experts in framing curriculum by giving equal importance to both sexes. The text book can prepare, projecting a positive image of women. New values can be incorporated by way of identifying areas of sex bias in the textual material and giving suggestions to the teacher's discussion, debates through exercises, questions, discussions, debates etc. This study may help the policy makers to improve women's opportunities outside the home and increase their bargaining power within households by training teachers, revising school curriculum and by educating parents to prevent continuing gender stereo types, boosting female enrolment rates and thus filling the gender gap.

# Title of the Study

The present paper is entitled as Protecting and Respecting the Safety and Rights of Women: An Analysis of NIRBHAYA Project.

# Main Objective of the Study

 To find out the influence of women safety programs conducted by various local government with special reference to NIRBHAYA Project.

# Methodology in Brief

The investigator selected descriptive survey method for the study and it was carried out in three phases. The first phase includes the selection of variable and preparation of the tool used in the study. The second phase includes selection of sample involved in the study and collection of data. The third phase includes analysis of data using suitable statistical procedures to draw conclusion.

The study was designed to identify the influence of women safety programme conducted by various local governments with special reference to NIRBHAYA Project. For this the investigator studied the report of an awareness programme organized by Mutholy Grama Panchayat, Kottayam and St. Thomas College of teacher education, Pala. The investigators collected the data from 30 adolescent girls, who attended the Nirbhaya programme at Mutholy. The statistical techniques used in this study are mainly descriptive.

# Analysis and Interpretation of the Data

# 1. Influence of NIRBHAYA Project among the Adolescent Girls

Inorder to study the distribution of scores on the influence of NIRBHAYA Project among adolescent girls, data pertaining to this objective were collected by administrating the tool titled 'Inventory on the influence of NIRBHAYA Project' prepared by the investigators. It was administered among thirty adolescent girls of Kottayam District. The investigator used the descriptive statistics namely frequency distribution, mean and standard deviation for the analysis of the data.

The scores obtained by the 30 girls are presented in the following frequency distribution table.

Table 1
The Distribution of the Scores on Influence of NIRBHAYA Project among the Adolescent Girls

Class Interval	Frequency	Percentage
Below 80	1	3.33
80-84	3	10
84-88	6	20
88-92	4	13.33
92-96	14	46.66
96-100	2	6.66
Total	30	100

From table 1, the investigator observes that 27 or 90 % of the total sample fall between the range 80-96 of the class interval and the rest fall below or above the two extremes.

The descriptive statistics calculated based on the scores of influence of NIRBHAYA project among the adolescent girls is presented in table 2.

Table 2

Variable, Number of Students, Maximum Score, Minimum Score, Mean, and Standard Deviation of the Scores on Influence of NIRBHAYA Project among the Adolescent Girls

Variable	Number	Maximum Score	Minimum Score	Mean	Standard Deviation
Influence of NIRBHAYA Project among the Adolescent Girls	30	97.5	77.5	90.25	4.72

From table 2, the investigator observes that the means of scores on the influence of NIRBHAYA project among the adolescent girls is 90.25 and standard

deviation is 4.72. The minimum score obtained is 77.50 and maximum score obtained is 97.50.

# 2. Classification of the Total Sample on the Basis of the Scores on Influence of NIRBHAYA Project

Based on the scores obtained, the investigator classified the whole sample into three categories; High influence (>M+1ó),

Moderate influence (between m+1ó and M-1ó) and Low Influence (< M-1ó). Here M is the mean and 'ó' is the standard meviation.

The classification of the sample on the basis of scores on the legal provisions for safety of women is given in table 3.

Table 3

Classification of the Adolescent Girls on the Basis of their Scores on the Influence of NIRBHAYA Project

Level	Range	Number of Adolescent girls	Percentage
High	>94.97	6	20
Moderate	Between 85.53 and 94.97	19	63.33
Low	85.53	5	16.66
	Total	30	100

From table 3, the investigator observes that 6 adolescent girls scored above 94.91. They constitute 20% of the total sample. They have high influence of NIRBHAYA project. There are 5 adolescent girls scored below 85.53 constituting 16.66% of the total sample. They have low influence of NIRBHAYA project. There are 19 adolescent girls lie between 85.53 and 94.91 constituting 63.33% of the total sample. They have moderate awareness on legal provisions for safety of women.

From the analysis, the investigator concludes that the majority of the adolescent girls (63.33%) have influence of NIRBHAYA project. 17 % of the adolescent girls have low influence of NIRBHAYA project, 20% of the total sample has high influence of NIRBHAYA project and 63% of the total sample has moderate influence of NIRBHAYA project.

# Major Findings and Discussion of the Results

From the study of distribution of the scores on Influence of NIRBHAYA project 17 % of the adolescent girls have low influence of NIRBHAYA project, 20% of the total sample has high influence of NIRBHAYA project and 63% of the total sample has moderate influence of NIRBHAYA project.

### Conclusion

The NIRBHAYA project undertaken by the local self governing bodies have made remarkable influence and effect among the rural women and girls. The government should conduct these types of progammes not only in village administrative systems, but also in schools and educational institutions. The study suggests the need of psychologists and councilors in educational institutions for giving girl children proper training for safety of women. The teachers should be good role

models for spreading out the projects for safety of women and girl children in educational institutions, home and society.

# References

- Ahmad (2013). Women Security and Legal Safeguards in India. Journal of business management and social science research.
   2(4). http://borjournals.com/Research\_ papers/ Ap\_2013/ 1184M.pdf
- Ajeet Lal (1998). Abortion under the Indian Penal Code and the medical termination of pregnancy act. Indian Social Legal Journal, 32(34), 93-102. Retrieved from http://www.law-lib.utoronto.ca/diana/ puneannotations.htm
- Devanesan, P. Paul., & Selvan, A. (2014).
   Women's safety rights in the prevailing social conditions. Indian Journal of Psychometry and Education, 45(2), 125-27.
- Dhar & Saqlain (1998). Women's rights in Christianity. Cochin university of law review, vol.22, 16-44. Retrieved from http:/ /www.law-lib.utoronto.ca/diana/puneanno tations.htm
- Johan Redlund (2005). Women in Panchayats- A study of gender structures andtheimpact of the 73<sup>rd</sup> Amendment to the Indian constitution. http://www.essays. se/about/role+of+women+in+ panchayats+ in+india/
- Khandai Hemanta (2001). The role of university in empowering women. University
  News, 39(6), 9-11. Retrieved from http://
  www.law-lib.utoronto.ca/diana/puneannot
  ations.htm
- Mcdougall Lori (2000). Gender gap in literacy in Uttar Pradesh. Economical and

- political weekly, 35(19), 16-49. Retrieved from http://www.law-lib.utoronto.ca/diana/puneannotations.htm
- Meena, O.P. (2012). Empowering Rural Women. New Delhi: Crescent Publishing Corporation.
- Mehotra, (2005). Empowerment of women for management of eco factors in homes.
   Retrieved from http://www.gvepinternational. org/
- Moye Jennifer & Marson C. Daniel (2007).
   Assessment of decision making capacity in older adults: An emerging area of practice and research. The journals of Gerontology, 62(1), 3-11. Retrieved from http://psychogerontology. oxfordjournals. org/content/62/1/P3.short
- Mugadur (2012). Women Empowerment through NGOs in rural areas. Retrieved from http://shodhganga.inflibnet.ac.in/ bitstream/ 10603/ 18375/ 10/10\_chapter% 202.pdf
- Nanda, B.R (1990). Indian Women from Purdah to Modernity. New Delhi: Radiant Publications.
- Nirbhaya project. Retrieved from http:// www.keralawomen.gov.in/index.php/ head lines/ 86-nirbhaya-scheme-
- Paul. P. Adam (2008). Awareness on Legal Rights among Women Teachers. Edutracks, 7(9), 38-40.
- Peter Klas (1998). Classical decision theory. Retrieved from http://oelinger.de/ mar ia/en/fuzzy/klaes/index.htm
- Rajan, M (2003). Influence of education for the empowerment of women- A study based on self help group strategy in Idukki District. Unpublished M.Ed Dissertation, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam.

- Ram Ranjini (1998). Divorced women's right to custody and guardianship of children. Cochin university law review, 22, 392-408. Retrieved from http://www.lawlib.utoronto.ca/diana/puneannotations.htm
- Ramanigopal, C.S. (2008). Self Esteem and Decision Making Styles of School Teachers. Journal of the Indian Academy of Applied Psychology, 34, 145-150. Retrieved from http://medind.nic.in/jak/t08/ s1/jakt08s1p145.pdf
- Rasheed Deepa (2009). A study on socio legal support system in protecting the women victims of domestic violence. Unpublished M.S.W Dissertation, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam.
- Sahoo Kumar., & Raju (2007). Working women and their experience in domestic violence. Social Change, 37(4), 131-52.

- Surendra Chahar (1998). Offence of rape: The marital exception. Indian Social Legal Journal, 32(34), 35-42. Retrieved from http://www.law-lib.utoronto. ca/diana/puneann-otations.htm
- Swami Vivekananda Quote (1896).
   Retrieved from http://saradeswariashram.
   org/ashram.html
- Vroom., & Yetton (1973). Normative decision theory. Retrieved from http:// wikipedia.org/wiki/vroom\_yetton\_decis ion\_model.
- WHO (2014). Adolescent. Retrieved from http://www.who.int/maternal-childadolescent.

# Blended Learning : An Effective Method for Teaching Mathematics

### Mumthas C.K

(Former MEd Student, NSS Training College, Ottapalam)

# Dr. Minikumari D

(Asst. Professor, NSS Training College, Ottapalam)

# Abstract

Studying through online platforms gives more flexibility and also can choose a learning environment that works best for learner needs. Many online resources are available according to the modern trends especially for the core subjects like Mathematics. But there is a need for instructors to give face-to-face interaction to reduce the defects of online courses. Here is the importance of blended learning. Blended learning is considered, complimentary use of face — to — face teaching, online tools, technology and resources to enhance student education. This paper tries to examine the scope of blended learning in Mathematics teaching.

Key words: Blended learning, Productivity, Interactive curriculum, Empowerment etc.

# Introduction

In the changing society, knowledge has become one of the important factors among the resources. The role of IT is becoming more important thereby making the process of knowledge productivity and interaction easier. So the upcoming generation should be able to claim the monopoly of Information & Communication Technology. Thus IT enabled education needs more explanation on the basis of the following aspects such as useful and interactive curriculum, empowerment of teachers, making teachers and pupils efficient in knowledge acquisition by means of ICT and by using softwares which help in teaching learning process.

As the traditional method of teaching and learning questions the very existence of the learner in the society, it is necessary that the students should keep abreast with the innovative technology based teaching methodology as well as the highly informative multimedia techniques. Thus we cannot nullify or neglect the importance of Information Technology in the present educational context. The child should be able to use the computer based learning activities by himself. Thus IT education could play an eminent role in the construction as well as the re-organization of knowledge by each child and thereby creating changes in the educational field.

Information and communication technology in schools can be used as a school communication tool to improve student learning and better teaching techniques. With the advancement of technology in education, schools adopt school communication software to transmit, store, share or exchange information. In this technological era, ICT in

education has compelled many schools to get accustomed to smart technology. This school communication software uses computers, the internet, and multimedia as the medium of communication.

The above are only some of the new directions that need to be taken. As Digital India is rolled out fully, and more experiments are undertaken, it is equally likely that new innovative and imaginative uses of information technology will come to the fore, to be harnessed appropriately. Technology is only an enabler; it has to be harnessed and applied appropriately in each situation, to deliver new goals.

The above sections have indicated many new paths that need to be broken. As these are explored, further avenues will surely expand. A major thrust to use technology to enable sharply enhanced learning levels at the school and higher levels is now imperative.

It is now fairly established that teaching material at the primary and secondary class levels, well prepared, and adapted to local conditions, can act as a powerful tool as aid to the teacher, in enhancing the quality of learning to the student. However, where the teacher is able to use well-prepared material as aid in the classroom for the teaching process, significant improvements in learning ability have been recorded. Major developments Communication and Information Technology in recent decades have brought in new dimensions in the fields of transmission of data, and use of IT as a vehicle for monitoring and management, among others. New possibilities have already opened up for use of information technology in different ways, not only to manage the sector, but also directly assist in enhancing the quality of teaching and learning. Many new applications are already in place; as developments in the IT sector advance rapidly, new opportunities constantly keep emerging, which could be appropriately harnessed and adapted to assist in the field of education.

In recent years on-line learning has also become a new trend in education. There are many on-line educational programmes and courses existing. Some of them are fully online courses.

Though IT is essential in the present scenario, the teacher cannot be substituted – IT cannot by itself deliver the necessary instruction material to the student. Here the importance of Blended Learning.

# What is Blended Learning

Marsh & Drexler (2001) and Willett (2002) claimed that blended learning represents all teaching models that are integrated with technology, such as e-mails, streaming media, and the Internet, and can be combined with traditional teaching methods. That is Blended Learning is considered, complimentary use of face - to - face teaching, online tools technology and resources to enhance student education. It encompasses student use of the internet, mobile devices and social media in their learning, the use of Virtual Learning Environment, e- assessment, lecture capture and desk top capture, and other learning and teaching approaches, usually mixed together with traditional face- to- face teaching.

# Different Models of Blended Learning

Horn and Staker (2011) have identified six models of blended learning:

- Face-to-Face driver: Here the teacher delivers the most of the curriculum in face-to-face classes.
- Rotation: Here the students rotate between a period of face-to-face tuition and a period of online study.
- Flex: Where the most learning is done in the learning environment.
- Online lab: Here all course material and teaching is done online, but in a physical classroom on a computer lab.
- Self-blend: This is a fully individualized approach, where the students take online classes a la carte.
- Online driver: Where students work mainly online in a remote location and come into school for optional or required faceto-face classes.

In a blended learning environment students are continuously connected to the content. Many learning styles are stimulated through various technologies and digital media, helping the students comprehend, retain, and apply information. Implementing a blended learning environment is simple in the present situation. It is an overhaul of the traditional classroom that requires additional technologies, technical support, and the understanding of both students and parents about how it will work. There are many components that can comprise a blended learning model, including instructor-delivered content, e-learning, webinars, conference calls, live or online sessions with instructors, and

other media and events, for example, Facebook, Whatsup, e-mail, chat rooms, blogs, podcasting, Twitter, YouTube, Skype and web boards.

# Advantages of Blended Learning.

According to various published research works, significant academic progress is made when traditional teaching is combined with computer-assisted teaching (Dalton & Hannafin, 1988). Thorne (2003) opinionated that Blended learning is the most logical and natural evolution of our learning agenda. It suggests an elegant solution to the challenges of tailoring learning and development to the needs of individuals and it represents an opportunity to integrate the innovative and technological advances offered by online learning with the interaction and participation offered in the best of traditional learning. It can be supported and enhanced by using the wisdom and one-to-one contact of personal coaches.

Another study revealed that a blended teaching approach improved students' achievement scores as compared to other approaches (Awodeyi, Akpan & Udo 2014). had improvement effects on students' attitudes toward mathematics (Aiken, 1976; Collins, 1996; Lozzi & Osimio, 2012). Therefore, when traditional didactic teaching compliments computer assisted teaching methods, it will be more effective to satisfy the desired learning objectives. In this study, face-to-face classroom methods incorporate computermediated instruction. The advantages of blended learning are dependent on the quality of the programs being implemented. Some indicators of excellent blended learning programs are facilitating student learning, communicating ideas effectively, demonstrating an interest in learning, organizing effectively, showing respect for students, and assessing progress fairly.

# Disadvantages of Blended Learning

Unless successfully planned and executed, blended learning could have disadvantages in technical aspects since it has a strong dependence on the technical resources or tools with which the blended learning experience is delivered. These tools need to be reliable, easy to use, and up to date, for them to have a meaningful impact on the learning experience. IT literacy can serve as a significant barrier for students attempting to get access to the course materials, making the availability of highquality technical support paramount. Other aspects of blended learning that can be challenging is group work because of difficulties with management in an online Reportedly the use of lecture setting. recording technologies can result in students falling behind on the materials. In a study performed across four different universities, it was found that only half of the students watched the lecture videos on a regular basis, and nearly 40% of students watched several weeks' worth of videos in one sitting. This has further implications for the educator and in how much online resources need to be revealed to the student but also ensure it is at the right level for the intended student.

From an educator's perspective, most recently, it has been noted that providing effective feedback is more time-consuming (and therefore more expensive) when electronic media are used, in comparison to traditional (e.g. paper-based) assessments.

Using e-learning platforms can be more time consuming than traditional methods and can also come with new costs as e-learning platforms and service providers may charge user fees to educators.

Another critical issue is access to network infrastructure. Although the digital divide is narrowing as the Internet becomes more pervasive, many students do not have pervasive and ubiquitous access to the Internet – even in their classrooms. Any attempt to incorporate blended learning strategies into an organization's pedagogical strategy needs to account for this. This is why learning centers are built with good wi-fi connections to make sure this issue is addressed.

### Conclusion

Results of analysis revealed that students preferred the face to face learning mode for communication, discussions, understanding of mathematics concepts and in improving their learning of mathematics. However, despite their inclination to the face to face learning mode, more than half of the students believe that the mathematics courses should be taught in a hybrid mode. The results of this study could be influenced by factors such as students' learning habits, the mathematics curriculum in schools prior to the students' post secondary education and the learning culture (Krishnan, 2015).

The study conducted by Ugur, Akkoyunlu, and Kurbanoglu (2011) on university students' perceptions of blended learning showed that the students gave highly positive opinions. The students found that blended learning is an easy and effective way to understand the lessons, provides them with opportunities to participate in forum

discussions and enables them to remember most of the lesson contents without memorization. According to Vernadakis et al. (2012), although literature shows that blended learning has positive influence and more satisfaction with the learning, the disadvantage of the blended learning mode did not go unnoticed. In comparing the traditional and the online mode, different opinions have been observed. In a study, Vernadakis et al. (2012) found the students to be more satisfied with the blended learning environment.

Also the innovations and technologies are changing very rapidly. Mathematics is a difficult and challenging subject for secondary school students. By considering the nature of mathematics and the scope of recent technologies in the present modern era the teaching and learning process should be changed according to the modern trends. So it can be concluded that the blended learning method is one of the best strategies to teach mathematics and that it can use the wide varieties of the modern technologies effectively and interestingly to the better understanding of the subject.

### References:

- Aiken, R. L. (1976). Update on attitudes and other affective variables in learning mathematics. Review of Educational Research, 46(2), 293-311.
- Awodeyi, A. F., Akpan, E. T., & Udo, I. J. (2014). Enhancing teaching and learning of mathematics: adoption of blended learning pedagogy in University of Uyo. International Journal of Science and Research, 3(11), 40-45.

- Dalton, D. W., & Hannafin, M. J. (1988).
   The effects of computer-assisted and traditional mastery methods on computation accuracy and attitudes.

   Journal of Education Research, 82(1), 27-33. doi: 10.1080/00220671.1988.10885861.
- Horn, M., and Staker, H. (2011). The Rise of K-12 Blended Learning. Innosight Institute.
- Krishnan, S. (2015). Student centered learning in a First Year Undergraduate Course. International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research, 11(2), 88 95.
- Marsh, J., & Drexler, P. (2001). How to design effective blended learning. Sunnyvale, CA: Brandon-Hall.
- Scida, E. E., & Saury, R. E. (2013).
   Hybrid courses and their impact on student and classroom performance: A case study at the University of Virginia.
   CALICO Journal, 23(3), 517 531. Retrieved from <a href="https://calico.org/html/article\_104.pdf">https://calico.org/html/article\_104.pdf</a>.
- Thorne, K. (2003). Blended learning: How to integrate online and traditional learning.
   Sterling VA: Kogan Page Limited.
- Ugur, B., Akkoyunlu, B., & Kurbanoglu, S. (2011). Students' opinions on blended learning and its implementation in terms of their learning styles. *Education Information Technology*, 16, 5 23.

# Effectiveness of Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback on Achievement in Science among Students at Primary Level

# Arathy V. J.

(M.Phil. Scholar, School of Pedagogical Sciences, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam)

# Dr. Sajna Jaleel

(Associate Professor, School of Pedagogical Sciences, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam)

### **Abstract**

The quality of education is largely dependent on the quality of instruction we provide in our classrooms. Efforts should be made to introduce new methods and evolve new techniques of instruction suiting to our national needs. The use of feedback is regarded as one of the most powerful strategies to improve student achievement. Whilst teachers have been found to give much feedback, their students report they receive little feedback that is helpful to learning. The present study used an established model of feedback - Hattie & Timperley Model - as a framework to answer the research question: which types and levels of feedback are more effective in the primary classroom?. The purpose of the study was to compare the effectiveness of Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback over the prevailing activity oriented method of teaching in science among students at primary level. This experimental study was based on 38 students of class III from one primary school of Kottayam district. The study prooved that the students taught through Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback has better achievement in science than those who learned through the prevailing activity method.

Key words: Effectiveness, Hattie and Timperley Model, Feedback, Achievement etc.

# Introduction

The use of feedback is regarded as one of the most powerful strategies to improve student achievement (Hattie, 2009) and as such, is garnering much attention in education policy and practice. The Australian Professional Standards for Teachers (Australian Institute for Teaching and School Leadership, 2014) lists the effective provision of feedback as one of its key standards. Whilst teachers have been found to give much feedback, their students report they receive

little feedback that is helpful to learning (Hattie, Gan, & Brooks, 2017). So, it is the quality rather than the quantity of feedback that is vital for feedback to be received and used by the learner. Calls have been made for further investigation into ways that feedback can be made more effective for students (Hattie & Gan, 2017; Shute, 2008). The present study used an established model of feedback (Hattie & Timperley, 2007) as a framework to answer the research question: which types and levels of feedback are more

effective in the primary classroom? The model delineates feedback first into three types: feeding up; feeding back; and feeding forwards and second into four levels: task; process; self-regulatory and self.

# Need and Significance of the Study

The quality of education is largely dependent on the quality of instruction we provide in our classrooms. We should pay proper attention to change the strategy of instruction. Efforts should be made to introduce new methods and evolve new techniques of instruction suiting to our national needs.

Educationalists have realised and are convinced of the fact that without introducing changes and innovations in our educational system to suit the changing philosophy of education, it is not possible to meet the challenges posed by the new emerging social order.

Feedback promotes personal and professional growth. It is about listening actively, taking the time to analyze, and then thinking of the best possible solution to perform better. It provides positive criticism and allows to see what everyone can change to improve their focus and results. Constructive feedback is a robust tool for creating healthy environment, boosting productivity and engagement, and achieving better results. Feedback plays the crucial role in education and learning by helping adopt new knowledge.

From the reviews the importance of model of feedback in learning behaviour of primary students is understood and the investigator selected this area for the study.

### Statement of the Problem

Effectiveness of Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback on Achievement in Science among Students at Primary Level

# **Definition of the Key Terms**

Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback :

Feedback is one of the most powerful influences on learrning and achievement. Hattie and Timperley's (2007) model encompasses certain conditions of effective feedback and takes into account the differing learning states of students.

# Objectives of the Study

- To develop an achievement test in science
- To compare the effectiveness of Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback over the prevailing Activity Oriented Method of teaching in science among students at primary level.

# Hypothesis of the Study

 The achievement in science among primary students taught through Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback of teaching will be significantly higher than that of the students taught through the prevailing Activity Oriented Method of teaching.

# Sample

For the present study 38 students of class III from one primary school of Kottayam district were taken as the sample. They were divided into two groups, one experimental group and the other control group, having 19 students in each group.

# Tools Used for the Study

 Lesson transcripts based on Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback

- Lesson transcripts based on existing method
- An achievement test in science

# Methodology

For the present study investigator selected experimental method with non-equavalent two groups.

# **Design Selected**

The design adopted for the present study is non equivalent groups with pre-test post-test design.

For doing the experiment, the investigator randomly formulated two non-equivalent classroom groups, one experimental and the other control group. The pre-test on the dependent variable was administered to the two groups. Then the experimental group was treated using Hattie and Timperely Model of Feedback and the control group by the activity oriented method. After the treatment, the same tests were given to the two groups as posttest and scores were determined.

To establish the relative effectiveness of the two treatments, the differences between the pretests and posttests scores of the dependent variable was compared using test of significance of difference between means (t-test), ANCOVA and Cohen's d-test.

# Analysis and Interpretation

The scores obtained by the experimental and controlled groups for science achievement test were analysed and its details are given below:

# Comparison of Gain in Scores of Students in Experimental and Control Groups

In the present study, investigator administered the achievement test in science to both the groups before and after the experimental treatment. The gain scores

obtained for achievement in science of the experimental and control groups in the pretest and post-test were subjected to appropriate statistical procedures. The analysis of data is presented below.

# Significance of Difference between Mean Gain Scores on Achievement in Science of Experimental and Control Groups.

The gains in the achievement of students in both groups were compared by testing the significance of the difference between means of the gain scores of the two groups using t value. The data and result of the test of significance of the difference between the mean gain scores are given in table 1.

Table 1

# Data and Tesult of the Test of Significance of the Difference between Mean Gain Scores on Achievement in Science of Experimental and Control Groups

Group	N	М	SD	t
Experimental	19	4.42	4.55	1.73
Control	19	2.26	2.98	1.75

The table values for significance at 0.05 and 0.01 are 1.96 and 2.58 respectively. The t value obtained 1.73 was not significant at both levels (t=1.73; P > 0.05). It means that there is no significant difference between the mean gain scores of the students in the experimental and control group.

# Comparison of Performance of Students in Experimental group and Control group on Achievement in Science.

The pre test and post test scores of the students in experimental group and control group on achievement in science were found out using ANCOVA. Before proceeding to ANCOVA, these scores were subjected to ANOVA. The details are presented below. The summary of the analysis of variance of 'x'

(pre-test) and 'y' (post test) scores of students in experimental and control groups, taken separately was given in table 2.

Table 2
Results of the Summary of Analysis of Variance of 'x' (pretest) and 'y' (posttest) Scores of Achievement Test in Science of Pupils in Experimental and Control Groups

Source of Variance	df	SSx	SSy	MSx	MSy	Fx	Fy
Among group means	1	5.92	82.5	5.92	82.53		
Within group means	36	153.58	594.5	4.27	16.51	1.39	5.00*
Total	37	159.5	677.1	-	-		

<sup>\*</sup>P<0.05

The table value of 'F' for df 1/36 at 0.05, 0.01 levels are 4.08 and 7.31 respectively. The obtained Fx and Fy ratios were tested for significance. The value of Fx was 1.39 which was not significant even at 0.05 level. The Fx value showed that there was no significant difference between pre-test scores of pupils in experimental and control group. The obtained Fy value 5.00 was significant at 0.05 level (Fy= 5.00; P<0.05). The significant Fy value indicates that the two groups differ significantly in the post test achievement.

# **Analysis of Co-Variance**

The final 'y'scores were corrected for the difference in initial x scores. For that, the SSy have been adjusted for any variability in 'y' contributed by 'x'. The adjusted sum of squares for 'y' that is SSy.x was computed and the 'F' ratio (Fy.x) was calculated. The summary of the analysis of covariance of pretest and post test scores of students in experimental and control groups taken separately was given in table 3.

Table 3

Results of the Summary of Analysis of Covariance of 'x' (pre test) and 'y' (post test)

Scores of Achievement Test in Science of Pupils in Experimental and Control Groups

Source of Variance	df	SSx	SSy	SSxy	SSy.x	MSy.x	SDy.x	Fy.x
Among group means	1	5.92	82.5	22.11	52.37	52.37	2 05	2.52
Within group means	35	153.58	594.5	107.89	518.73	14.82	3.85	3.53
Total	36	159.50	677.1	130.00	571.10	-		

Since the table value of the F ratio for df 1/35 was 4.17 at 0.05 level, the obtained Fy.x ratio was not significant. (Fy.x=3.53). The Fy.x ratio shows that the

means of the post test scores of students in the experimental and control groups do not differ significantly even after they have been adjusted for the difference in the pre test scores.

# Comparison of Adjusted 'y' means

The adjusted means of post test scores (y means) of students in the experimental and control groups were computed and the difference between the adjusted 'y' means was tested for significance. The data for adjusted means of post test scores of students in experimental and control groups taken separately was given in table 4

Table 4
Results of the Test of Significance of Difference between the Adjusted Means of Post test Scores of Achievement test in Science of Pupils in Experimental and Control Groups

Group	Ν	Mx	Му	My.x	SEm	t-value
Experiment	19	5.89	10.3	10.04		
Control	19	5.11	7.4	7.65	1.25	1.92
Total	38	5.50	8.84	ı		

From table 't' for df 35, 't' at 0.05 and 0.01 levels are 2.042 and 2.75 respectively.

The obtained 't' value is 1.92 which does not exceed the critical value of 't', 2.042 at 0.05 level (t= 2.14; P > 0.05)

The non-significant t value leads to the conclusion that the two means do not

differ considerably. That is, it shows that the means of the post test scores of students in the experimental and control groups do not differ significantly even after they have been adjusted for the difference in the pre test scores.

# Comparison of Achievement in Science of Experimental and Control Groups based on Pre-test Post-test Scores using Cohen's D

To find out the effectiveness of the Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback, the pre-test and post-test scores of the experimental and control groups were compared using Cohen's d. The d value between 0 and 0.3 is small effect size. if it is between 0.3 and 0.6 is moderate effect size and if larger than 0.6 it is a large effect size. The results of analysis and interpretation are given under the following sub-heads.

# Comparison of Experimental and Control Groups on Achievement in Science as a Whole based on Pre-test and Post-test Scores

The investigator attempted to compare the Science achievement of the groups of students based on the pre-test and post-test scores. The experimental group was taught using Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback and the control group using Activity Method of teaching.

Table 5

Test of Significance of the Difference between Pre-Test and Post-Test Score of Experimental and Control Groups

Pre-test	Group	N	М	SD	d value
	Experimental	19	7.37	3.59	0.4
	Control	19	5.89	2.28	0.4
Post-test	Experimental	19	10.32	4.48	0.6
	Control	19	7.37	3.59	0.6

The d value obtained for pre-test is 0.4. The d value obtained for post-test is 0.6. Both d values are showing moderate effect. Thus the model is moderate effective in pre and post-tests.

# Analysis of the Gain Scores of Experimental and Control Group Using Cohen's D Test

To find out the effectiveness of the Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback the gain score of the experimental and control groups was analysed using d-test. The result of the analysis and its interpretation is given under the following sub-heads.

# Analysis of the Whole Gain Score of the Experimental and Control Groups

The investigator attempted to determine the Achievement in science of the experimental and control groups based on the gain scores. The experimental group was taught using Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback and the control group using Activity Oriented Method.

Table 6
Test of Significance of the Gain Scores of Experimental and Control Groups

Group	Ν	М	SD	d value	
Experimental	19	4.42	4.55	0.5	
Control	19	2.26	2.98	0.5	

The d value 0.5 for gain scores shows moderate effectiveness of Hattie and Timpereley Model of Feedback on achievement in science.

# Major Findings of the Study

# Comparison of Post- test scores on Achievement in Science of Pupils in the Experimental and Control Groups.

The arithmetic mean and standard deviation of post-test scores obtained by the Experimental group is 10.32 and 4.49 respectively and that for Control group is 7.37 and 3.59. The t value calculated is 2.24 which is greater than the table values 1.96 at 0.05 level and so is significant at 0.05 level (t =2.24; P<0.05). The two groups, Experimental and Control groups differ in their post-test scores. Since the mean scores of experimental group are greater than the control group, it means that the student taught through Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback has better achievement in Science than those pupils who learned through the Activity method.

# **Educational Implications of the Study**

Science Process Skills provide students to learn by doing, experiencing and associating science subject with daily life. These are skills which we use to create information, think on problems and formulate the results. We can make an individual to learn and understand their life by enabling the students by gaining these important skills. These skills are fundamental of the thought and research in the science content (Erdoðan, 2005). The findings revealed ha several strategies included in the study help students for the development of science process skills.

# Conclusion

Achievement in science of primary school students taught through Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback method is

significantly higher than that of those who taught through the activity oriented method. Comparison of the Achievement in science of the Experimental and Control groups shows significant difference between the Pre-test and Post-test scores using t-test and ANCOVA. Experimental group shows better Achievement in science than the Control group. Thus it is concluded that Achievement in Science of students taught through Hattie and Timperley Model of Feedback is significantly higher than that of students taught through activity oriented method.

# References

- Alton-Lee, A., & Nuthall, G. (1998).

  Inclusive instructional design: Theoretical principles emerging from the Understanding Learning and Teaching Project (Report to the Ministry of Education, Understanding Learning and Teaching Project 3). Wellington, New Zealand: Ministry of Education, Research Division.
- Ashford, S. J., & Cummings, L. L. (1983).
   Feedback as an individual resource:
   Personal strategies of creating information.
   Organizational Behavior and Human Performance, 32, 370-398.
- Butler, D. L., & Winne, P. H. (1995).
   Feedback and self-regulated learning: A theoretical synthesis. Review of Educational Research, 65(3), 245-274.
- Butler, R. (1987). Task-involving and egoinvolving properties of evaluation: Effects of different feedback conditions on

- motivational perceptions, interest and performance. *Journal of Educational Psychology*, 79,474-482.
- Butler, R. (1988). Enhancing and undermining intrinsic motivation: The effects of task involving and ego-involving evaluation on interest and performance. British Journal of Educational Psychology, 58, 1-14.
- Campbell, J. D. (1986). Similarity and uniqueness: The effects of attribute type, relevance, and individual differences in self-esteem and depression. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 50, 281-294.
- Campbell, I. D., & Fairey, P. . (1985). Effects of self-esteem, hypothetical explanations, and verbalization of expectancies on future performance. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 48, 1097-1111.
- Cardelle, M., & Como, L. (1981). Effects on second language learning of variations in written feedback on homework assignments. TESOL Quarterly, 15(3), 251-261.
- Carroll, A., Durkin, K., Hattie, J., & Houghton, S. (1997). Goal setting among adolescents: A comparison of delinquent, at-risk, and not at-risk youth. *Journal of* Educational Psychology, 89,441-450.

## Metacognitive Awareness and Learning Styles among Prospective Teachers

Sr. Dr. Mary Thomas

(Assistant Professor, St.Thomas College of Teacher Education, Pala)

Dr. Sunu Austin

(Assistant Professor, St.Thomas College of Teacher Education, Pala)

### **Abstract**

Metacognition is a powerful tool for thinking which involves awareness, understanding and interpreting the world around individual. The present study aimed to investigate the association between metacognitive awareness and learning styles of secondary level prospective teachers. The present study follows a descriptive survey method. The sample consisted of 81 prospective teachers at secondary level in Kottayam district, Kerala. The tools used for the study were Metacognitive Awareness Inventory (MAI) prepared and standardized by Schraw, G., & Dennison, R. S. (1994) and Learning Style Inventory (Kolb,1984). Descriptive statistics mean and Standard deviation and the inferential statistics Pearson Chi Square Test and ANCOVA were used for analyzing the data. The study revealed that there is significant association between High, Moderate and Low levels of Metacognitive Awareness and different Learning Styles namely Accommodative, Divergent, Assimilative and Convergent. It was also revealed that there is significant difference in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their Learning Styles.

**Key words:** Metacognitive awareness, Learning styles, Accommodative, Divergent, Assimilative and Convergent etc.

### Introduction

Metacognition is a term introduced by Flavell in 1976. It is knowledge, which is the results of acquired experiences of individual while using cognitive process (Flavell, 1979). It is a powerful tool for thinking which involves awareness, understanding and interpreting the world around individual (Anderson, Nielsen, & Nashon, 2009). Learning style is an approach that describes how individuals learn. The styles are individual for each person and can be used to distinguish the learners one another. Learning styles can be defined, classified, and identified in many different

ways. Kolb's Experiential Learning Theory focused on learning styles, or the cognitive processes that occurred in order for acquire knowledge. According to him there are four learning styles. They are Diverging, Assimilating, Converging and Accommodating. Metacognitive awareness is an important factor which helps student-teachers to become more conscious of how they learn and teach and identify the most effective ways of doing so. As being teacher educators, the investigators were interested to find out the Metacognitive Awareness of Teacher Trainees and its association with different Learning Styles.

### Need for the Study

Metacognition involves an awareness of the skills, strategies and resources needed to perform a task effectively- knowing what to do and the ability to use self- regulatory mechanisms to ensure the successful completion of the task- knowing how and when to do the what. (Schraw& Dennison, 1994). Since Metacognition has applications for many areas of school success it has become one of the major fields of cognitive and educational psychology research. The image of student as passive receiver of information is replaced by constructivist classrooms, with active participant, who is motivated to practice an authentic learning. Teaching students how to learn efficiently involve constant actions of the teachers for making students responsible, making conscience themselves about their strengths and their limits, and their own learning styles. If teachers have enough Metacognitive awareness they can help their students to develop awareness with respect to their thinking and learning processes and strategies.

The maintenance of high quality and standards in education has become a major concern for the higher education institutions" (Campbell, Rozsnyai, 2002). Student-teachers receiving instruction on Metacognition, may develop skills that will make them more successful in their academic and professional careers. So the measurement of Metacognitive awareness and training in Metacognitive skills development of prospective teachers is useful. Developing Metacognitive strategies by

encouraging them to use various Metacognitive strategies may be helpful to student-teachers to grow in their natural curiosity to discover more about how they learn and teach best.

Learning styles may affect individuals' way of thinking in every moment of the life. Styles influence how students learn, how teachers teach, and how the two interact. Learning style can also be described as a set of factors, behaviors, and attitudes that facilitate learning for an individual in a given situation. Generally, they are overall patterns that provide direction to learning and teaching. Thus, it has a significant part in education. Metacognitive skill is inter-related with one's learning style. It is reported that there is a significant relationship between the learning style dimensions and metacognition ( Ameerh, 2014). It is also reported that there is a significant relationship between learning style and strategies of metacognition (Jafarpanah and Farahian, 2016). The students' metacognitive skill and their learning style vary due to the different learning experiences obtained by each student through various different situations. Previous studies have shown that students, who have high levels of metacognitive awareness, perform better achievement levels than other students (Garner & Alexander, 1989). Besides, it can be said that learning styles may affect metacognitive awareness of students.

The investigation on Metacognition is relevant in the teacher education scenario where prospective teachers are engaged in the process of acquiring awareness on techniques of quality learning. Each student

teacher has a different learning style, thus causing distinction in his/her the metacognition. The knowledge regarding interrelation between metacognition and learning style of student teachers may be helpful for teacher educators in planning and designing activities and guiding student teachers in their endeavor of becoming efficient teachers. It is emphasized that students' learning styles should consider while designing learning environment (Dwyer, 1996).In the process of metacognitive awareness, in order to acquire new knowledge and skills some processes takes place like planning about in what rate efforts are needed and how much time learners should allocate (Cao &Nietfeld, 2007).It may also be helpful for student teachers in making their students independent learners and also improving their self-confidence. Thus, it may be stated that studying relationship between metacognitive awareness and learning styles, may provide significant contributions to literature and a new path for teachers.

### Objectives of the Study

- To find out the significant difference if any in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their learning Style.
- To find out the relation between different levels of Metacognitive Awareness with Learning Styles among secondary level prospective teachers.

### Hypotheses of the Study

 There is significant association between Metacognitive Awareness and learning Style of secondary level prospective teachers. There is significant difference in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their learning Style.

### Methodology of the Study

The present study aimed at finding out the association between metacognitive awareness and learning styles of secondary level prospective teachers. The study followed a descriptive survey method. The population for the present study covers all the secondary level prospective teachers of Kottayam District, Kerala. The sample consisted of 81 prospective teachers at secondary level in Kottayam district. The tools used for the study was Metacognitive Awareness Inventory (MAI) prepared and standardized by Schraw, G., & Dennison, R. S. (1994) and Learning Style Inventory (Kolb, 1984).

### Analysis and Interpretation of Data

The first objective of the study was "to find out the relation between different levels of Metacognitive Awareness with Learning Styles among secondary level prospective teachers". For the analysis of the study the investigator formulated the following null hypothesis which is stated as 'There exists no significant relation between different levels of Metacognitive Awareness with learning Style among secondary level prospective teachers. The investigator tested the null hypothesis using Pearson Chi Square Test for identifying the relationship between categorical variables. The investigator presents the data and results in Table 1.

Table 1
Association between Metacognitive Awareness Levels and Learning Styles among Secondary Level Prospective Teachers

) /owighto	Laval		Lea	arning S	tyle		df	n	
Variable	Level	AC	DV	AS	CV	Total	ul	÷2	р
Metacognitive	High	3	3	2	10	18			
Awareness	Moderate	17	13	7	11	48	14.055	6	.029
	Low	7	1	5	2	15			
	Total	27	17	14	23	81			

Note: AC -Accommodative; DV -Divergent; AS- Assimilative; CV- Convergent

From Table 1, the investigator observes that the obtained Chi Square value of Metacognitive Awareness (X2 =14.055, df=6, p <.05), is significant at .05 level. Hence the null hypothesis which states that 'There exists no significant relation between different levels of Metacognitive Awareness with Learning Style among Secondary level Prospective Teachers' is rejected. Therefore, the investigator infers that there is significant association between High, Moderate and Low levels of Metacognitive Awareness and different Learning Style namely Accommodative, Divergent, Assimilative and Convergent.

The second objective of the study was to find out the significant difference if any in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their learning Style. The investigator calculated the mean and standard deviation of the scores on Metacognitive Awareness among the secondary level of prospective teachers with respect to their Learning Style and the data is presented in table 2

Table 2

The Number (N), Mean (M) and Standard Deviation (SD) of Metacognitive Awareness among Secondary Level Prospective Teachers with Respect to their Learning Style

Variable	Number	Mean	SD
Accommodative	27	37.15	6.86
Divergent	17	40.17	6.00
Assimilative	14	36.64	7.93
Convergent	23	42.17	6.98
Total	81	39.12	7.17

From table 2, the investigator observes that the mean of the scores on Metacognitive Awareness among the secondary level prospective teachers is 39.12 and standard deviation is 7.17.

The investigator formulated a null hypothesis which states that "there is no significant difference in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their learning Style". In order to test the null hypothesis, the investigator used the statistical technique ANOVA and the result is given in table 3.

Table 3
Results of the Analysis Using ANOVA

Metacognition	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
Between Groups	615.48	5	123.10		
Within Groups	3501.28	75	46.68	2.637	.030
Total	4116.77	80			

From table 3, the investigator observes that the F value is(F (5, 75) =2.63, p< .05), significant at .05 level. Therefore, the null hypothesis is not accepted and the investigator infers that there is significant difference in Metacognitive Awareness of

secondary level prospective teachers with respect to streams of discipline. Hence there is a need for further Post Hoc analysis to find in which group, the significant difference exists. Hence the investigator applied LSD test and the results are given in Table 4.

Table 4

Multiple Comparisons of Different Pairs of Metacognitive Awareness among Secondary

Level Prospective Teachers

Variable	LearningStyle(I)	LearningStyle(J)	MeanDifference (I-J)	Std. Error	Sig.
	accommodative	Divergent	-3.028	2.144	.162
	accommodative	Assimilative	.505	2.280	.825
Metacognitive	accommodative	Convergent	-5.025 <sup>*</sup>	1.964	.013
Awareness	Divergent	Assimilative	3.533	2.499	.161
	Divergent	Convergent	1.997	2.214	.370
	Assimilative	Convergent	-5.531 <sup>*</sup>	2.347	.021

The result of the Post- Hoc analysis reveals that there exists significant difference in the Metacognitive Awareness between the pair Accommodative and Convergent Learning Styles (Mean Difference I-J= 5.025, p <.05) and Assimilative and Convergent Learning Styles (Mean Difference I-J= 5.531, p <.05). Hence this is inferred that Metacognitive Awareness of the Prospective Teachers with Convergent Learning Styles is higher than Accommodative and Assimilative Learning Styles.

### Findings of the Study

- There is significant association between High, Moderate and Low levels of Metacognitive Awareness and different Learning Style namely Accommodative, Divergent, Assimilative and Convergent.
- There is significant difference in Metacognitive Awareness of secondary level prospective teachers with respect to their Learning Style.

#### Conclusion

Student teachers should possess knowledge regarding the concept of metacognition and learning styles and also awareness about one's own cognition and way of thinking. They may discover that a technique that works for one class doesn't work for all classes. Through the process of trial and error, student teachers succeed in some methods and fail in others before trying again. They can provide students with information about how the brain processes information, how it forms knowledge and memories, as well as the impact stress has on these abilities. They can also encourage students to recognize what they don't understand and discuss how to tackle the unknown.

The present study has found that Metacognitive Awareness of the Prospective Teachers with Convergent Learning Styles is higher than Accommodative and Assimilative Learning Styles. Convergent learning style highlights problem solving as an approach to learning. Individuals who prefer this learning style are able to make decisions and apply their ideas to new experiences. It will make the investigator contented if this study motivates teachers and to pursue the new outlooks in this area of enquiry and inspires them to focus on the need of nurturing Metacognitive awareness among the prospective teachers by providing opportunities of problem solving. Hence the study may motivate teachers, curriculum designers, and authorities to try to elevate the student teachers' Metacognitive awareness through problem solving approach so that they may become successful future teachers.

#### References

- Ameerh, O. A. A.(2014) Canadian Social Science, 10, 66 (2014).
- Anderson, D., Nielsen, W. S. & Nashon, S. (2009). Metacognitive engagement during field-trip experiences: Acase study of students in an amusement park physics program. Journal of Research in Science Teaching,46(3), 265-288. http://dx.doi.org/10.1002/tea.20266
- Campbell, C., Rozsnyai, C.(2002).
   Quality Assurance and the Development of Course Programmes.
   Bucure<sup>o</sup>ti:UNESCO, CEPES.
- Cao, L., &Nietfeld, J. L. (2007). College students' metacognitive awareness of difficulties in learning the class content does not automatically lead to adjustment of study strategies. Australian Journal of Educational & Developmental Psychology, 7, 31-46.
- Dwyer, J. (1996). Learning Differences and Teaching Styles. Retrieved January 17, 2013, from http://www.yorku.ca/admin/ cst/learndifs.html.
- Flavell, J. H. (1979). Metacognition and cognitive monitoring: A new area of cognitive-developmental inquiry. American psychologist, 34(10), 906-911. http:// dx.doi.org/ 10.1037/0003 -066X.34.10.906.
- Flavell, J.H. (1976).Metacognitive aspects of problem-solving. In L.B. Resnick (Ed.), Perspectives on the development of memory and cognition, Hillsdale; N.J.: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates. http:// metacognition.com.ifrance.com/.

- Garner, R. (1987). Metacognition and reading comprehension. Norwood, NJ: Ablex.
- Kolb(1984). The Learning Style Inventory. https://learningfromexperience. com/ downloads /research-library/the-kolblearning-style -inventory-4-0. pdf.
- Schraw,G.,& Dennison, R. S. (1994).
   Assessing metacognitive awareness.
   Contemporary Educational Psychology,
   19, 460-475. http:// dx.doi.org /10.1006/ceps.1994.1033.
- Seema, G. (2014). Metacognitive Awareness in Teaching and Teaching Competency: A Survey on Student Teachers at Secondary Level. IOSR Journal of Research & Method in

- Education (IOSR-JRME) e-ISSN: 2320-7388,p-ISSN: 2320-737X Volume 4, Issue 4 Ver. V, PP 33-35 www.iosrjournals.org.
- SerdalBaltaci ,AvniYildiz& Bilal Özcakir (2016). The Relationship between Metacognitive Awareness Levels, Learning Styles, Genders and Mathematics Grades of Fifth Graders. http://dx.doi.org/10.5539/jel.v5n4p78. Journal of Education and Learning; Vol. 5, No. 4; ISSN 1927-5250 E-ISSN 1927-5269 Published by Canadian Center of Science and Education.

# Effectiveness of Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach on Science Process Skills among Secondary School Students

### Megha Varghese

(Former M. Ed. student, St. John the Baptist's College of Education, Nedumkunnam)

### Dr. Sujithran P.

(Assistant Professor, St. John the Baptist's College of Education, Nedumkunnam)

#### Abstract

Science as a subject plays a unique role in promoting the thinking ability through the process skills. The American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS), UNESCO (1992) has identified thirteen process skills under two major classification namely basic and integrated. To develop the process skills among students, the use of suitable methods is essential. The objective of the present study was to find out the effectiveness of POGIL approach on the development of science process skills among secondary school students. Quasi experimental method with pre-test post-test non-equivalent design was used for the study. The study was based on a sample of 60 students of standard IX. Findings of the study revealed that Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach is more effective than the prevailing method of teaching of science for enhancing the science process skills among secondary school students.

Key words: Process skills, Guided inquiry learning, Critical thinking etc.

### Introduction

There is a strong belief that children who are properly introduced to science through process skills will find the skills useful throughout life. Science as a subject plays a unique role in promoting the thinking ability through the process skills. Science process skills emphasize on hypothezing, manipulating in the physical world and critical thinking has been used at various times to describe these science skills. Process skills are developed through science study, but all of them are not effective for all students.

The American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS), UNESCO (1992) has identified thirteen process skills under two major classification namely basic and integrated. Basic science process skills (bsps) are observing, classifying, communicating, measuring, predicting and inferring. Integrated science process skills (isps) are identifying and defining variables, describing the relationship between variables, formulating and testing hypothesis, collection of data, designing investigation and experimentation, manipulating the variables, identifying the cause and effects, acquiring, organizing and

displaying the data with charts, graphs and tables. All these process skills are interrelated; there is no sequence or particular order of these skills. So the need for teaching and learning of process skill is very important.

### Need and Significance of Study

To develop the process skills among students, the use of suitable methods is essential. The effect of Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) approach is expected to be a good method for it.

In the POGIL approach the students get a chance to reflect their answers and findings in a comparatively current method of teaching. So POGIL approach might be a suitable method for science teaching especially for developing process skills among students. Some investigators have used this approach in different subjects but there is no sufficient studies among physical science students.

#### Statement of the Problem

The study is entitled as Effectiveness of Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach on Science Process Skills among Secondary School Students

### **Definition of Key Terms**

### **Effectiveness**

Effectiveness means the extend to which an activity fulfils its intended purpose or function.

In the present study effectiveness means the extent to which the success in developing Science Process Skills among Secondary School Students through POGIL approach.

### Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach

It is a student- centered, group learning instructional strategy and philosophy developed through research on how students learn best (www.pogil.org.)

### Science Process Skill

According to Tobin and Copie (1982) Science Process Skills are intellectual skills used in collecting and analyzing data to solve problems

In the present study investigator considers process skills as information processing, communication, critical thinking and problem solving which is measured through a process skill test developed by the investigator

### Secondary School

In the present study it refers to any school organized by government of Kerala for imparting instructions to students comprising standards VIII, IX and X.

### Objectives of the Study

- To find out the effectiveness of POGIL approach on the development of science process skills among secondary school students
- To prepare lesson transcripts based on POGIL Approach for IXth standard students.

### Hypothesis of the Study

 There exists a significant difference in the Science Process Skills of Secondary School Students taught through POGIL approach and taught through the prevailing activity oriented method.

### Methodology in Brief

In the present study quasi experimental method with pre-test post-test non-equivalent design was used.

### Variables of the Study

POGIL approach is the independent variable and science process skills is the dependent variable.

### **Population**

The population consists of all secondary school students in Kerala

### Sample

The sample consists of 60 standard IX students of a secondary school in Kottayam district.

### **Tools and Techniques**

The tools used are the lesson plans prepared in prevailing method of teaching and using POGIL approach. For measuring the effectiveness of this approach in developing science process skills, a Science Process Skill Test developed by the investigator was used.

### **Statistical Techniques**

Mean, Median, Mode, Standard Deviation and skewness where the descriptive statistics and t-test was the inferential tool used for the study.

### Scope of the study

The study is aimed to find out the effectiveness of POGIL approach in the development of science process skills. The investigator hopes that the findings of the

study will be of great use to the teachers and curriculum planners to develop science process skills among secondary school students.

### **Delimitations of the Study**

 The study is confined to only one school in Kottayam district and it was conducted in ninth standard only.

### Procedure of the Study

Experimental and controle groups were formulated. Then pre-test was conducted in both the groups. In experimental group, classes in chemistry were taken using the lession plans prepared based on POGIL aproach and in the control group same topics were taught using the prevailing method. Then conducted the post-test.

### **Analysis and Interpretation**

### Comparison of Gain Scores in the Science Process Skills

The students in both the groups (experimental and control) were compared by testing the significance difference between the means of the gain scores of Science Process Skill test. For this the critical ratio was found out and tested for significance. The data and the result of the test of significance of the gain scores are given in the following table 1.

Table 1

Results of Test of Significance of the Gain Scores of Science Process Skill Test of Experimental and Control Groups

Group	No. of Students	Mean	Standard Deviation	Critical Ratio	Level of Significance
Experimental	30	12.13	4.32	6.72	Significant at
Control	30	5.50	3.26	0.72	0.05 Level

Table 1 shows that the critical ratio calculated is 6.72 and it is greater than 1.96 at 0.05 levels of significance. Since the mean of the experimental group is greater than that of the control group, and the t-value is grater than the table value it is inferred that experimental group is better than the control group with respect to their Science Process Skills.

By analyzing the pre-test scores, post-test scores, gain scores and by finding out critical ratio, it cannot be concluded that the two groups may or may not differ significantly in their concert after the conducting of experiment. So it is necessary to analyze the data using the statistical technique 'Analysis of Co-variance (ANCOVA)'.

## Comparison of the Science Process Skills of the Experimental and Control Groups Using Ancova

St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

For inwarding valid and reliable terminations the investigator adopted the statistical technique ANCOVA. So the pretest and post-test scores of the experimental and control groups were subjected to the statistical technique of Analysis of Co-variance to determine the effectiveness of POGIL Approach on the Development of Science Process Skills.

### Comparison of Effectiveness of Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning Approach on the Development of Science Process Skill with the Prevailing Method

The summary of Analysis of Variance of Pre-test (X) and Post-test (Y), taken separately is shown in the following table 2.

Table 2
Summary of Analysis of Variance of Pre-test (X) and Post-test (Y) Scores of Students in the Experimental and Control Groups, Taken Separately

Sources of variance	df	SS <sub>x</sub>	SS <sub>y</sub>	MS <sub>x</sub> (V <sub>x</sub> )	$MS_y(V_y)$	F <sub>x</sub>	F <sub>y</sub>
Among Means	1.00	0.27	686.8	0.27	686.82	0.00	40.00
Within the Groups	58.00	634.67	812.0	10.94	14.00	0.02	49.06
Total	59.00	634.93	1498.9	-	-		

Table 2 elucidates the analysis of variance of pre-test and post-test scores such as df, SS<sub>x</sub>, SS<sub>y</sub>, MS<sub>x</sub>(V<sub>x</sub>) and MS<sub>y</sub>(V<sub>y</sub>). The value of df among the group is 1 and within the group is 58 and the total is 59. Similarly the SS<sub>x</sub> and SS<sub>y</sub> values among the grup is 0.27 and 686.8 while within the group is 634.67 and 812. The total scores are 634.93 and 1498.9. Thus the scores of MS<sub>x</sub> (V<sub>x</sub>) and MS<sub>y</sub> (V<sub>y</sub>) values among the means is 0.27 and 686.82 while within the group is 10.94 and 14. The considering F<sub>x</sub> and F<sub>y</sub> values are 0.02 and 49.06 respectively.

From the above mentioned table F for df 1/58. Value of F at 0.05 level = 4. The F ratio for two sets of scores was tested for significance. The table values of F for df/58 are 4 at 0.05 level. Since the scatter brained value of  $F_x$  is 0.02, it is less than the table value 1.66 at 0.05 level. So it can be concluded that there is no significant difference in the pre-test development of science process skill test in Chemistry scores of both experimental and control group. The scatterbrained value of  $F_y$  is 49.06,

it is greater than the table value 4, which is significant at 0.05 level. So it can be concluded that there is significance differences

between the post-test scores of the experimental and control group are given in the Table 3.

Table 3
Summary of Analysis of Co-variance of Pre-test and Post-test Scores of Students in Experimental and Control Groups

Sources of variance	df	SS <sub>x</sub>	SS <sub>y</sub>	SS <sub>xy</sub>	SS <sub>yx</sub>	MS <sub>yx</sub>	SD <sub>yx</sub>
Among Means	1.00	0.27	686.8	13.53	673.85	673.85	3.43
Within the Groups	57.00	634.67	812.0	298.87	671.30	11.78	
Total	58.00	634.93	1498.9	312.40	1345.14		

 $F_{vx} = 57.22$ 

From the table 3 elucidates that, the analysis of Co- variance of pre-test and posttest scores of df,  $SS_x$ ,  $SS_y$ ,  $SS_{xy}$ ,  $SS_{yx}$ ,  $MS_{yx}$ ,SD $_{_{\!\scriptscriptstyle N\!X}}$  and F $_{_{\!\scriptscriptstyle N\!X}}$  The value of df among the group is 1 and within the group is 57 and the total is 58. Similarly the SS, and SS, values among the grup is 0.27 and 686.8 while within the group is 634.67 and 812. The total scores are 634.93 and 1498.9. Thus the scores of  $SS_{xy}$  and  $SS_{yx}$  values among the means is 13.53 and 673.85 while within the group is 298.87 and 671.30 and the total scores are 312.40 and 1345.14. MS, values among the group and within the groups are 673.85 and 11.78 respectively. The SD, value is 3.43 and the considering  $F_{vx}$  value is 57.22.

Here the comparison of  $F_{yx}$  ratio is 57.22 was tested for significance. Since the

table value of F ratio for 1/57 df is 4 at 0.05 level of significance. The calculated value is highly greater than the table value. The scatterbrained  $F_{yx}$  ratio is highly significance even at 0.05 levels. It is clear from the  $F_{yx}$  ratio that the two final mean which depends upon the experimental and control variables differ significantly after that have been adjusted for primary distinction in the pre-test scores.

### Comparison of Adjusted (Y) Means

The adjusted means for post-test scores (Y) means of the pupil in the experimental and control groups were computed using Correlation and Regression. The difference between the adjusted Y means of post-test scores of students in the experimental and control groups are given in the Table 4.

Table 4
Comparison of Adjusted Means of Post-test Scores of Students in Experimental and Control Group

Groups	No. of students	M <sub>x</sub>	$M_{y}$	M <sub>xy</sub> (Adjusted)	t	SEm
Experimental Group	30.00	11.20	23.3	23.30		
Control Group	30.00	11.07	16.6	16.60	7.57	0.89
General Means	60.00	11.13	19.95	-		

Table 4 gives the idea about the comparison of adjusted means of post-test scores of pupils in experimental and control groups. 30 students belongs to each groups and the values of  $M_x$  and  $M_y$  in the experimental group is 11.20 and 23.3 while the control group is 16.6. The total scores of this is 11.13 and 19.95. The values of  $M_{xy}$  in both experimental and control groups is 23.30, 16.60 respectively. The considerable t value is 7.57.

The difference between the adjusted means of post-test scores of students in the experimental and control groups were tested significance. The calculated difference between the adjusted Y means is 7.57 which are greater than the table value 1.66 at 0.05 levels. So it is significant at the prescribed level. The difference between the adjusted Y mean indicated that the students in the experimental group differ significantly in their development of Science Process Skill test in Chemistry in the post-test. Thus the students learned by Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning Approach are better than prevailing method in their Science Process Skills. From the results it can be interpreted that POGIL Approach is an effective method for the development of science process skill among secondary school students.

### Finding of the Study

The study revealed that Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning (POGIL) Approach is better than the previling methods of teaching for enhancing in the science process skills among secondary school students.

#### Conclusion

In the present world a lot of strategies and approaches help teachers to transact content among students. POGIL has wide scope in the field of education in the present scenario. It emphasizes interest and curiosity among learners in their science subjects. The approach POGIL, helps students to develop several process skills and to guide them to self inquiry learning. Also, it gives opportunity to students for co-operative and collaborative learning.

The findings of the study make it clear that this strategy will be of great help to both teachers and students in improving their teaching and learning processes and is of great help to the development of Science Process Skills among secondary school students.

### References

- Adnyana, P.B. & Citrawathi, D.M. (2017). The Effectiveness of Question-Based Inquiry Module in Learning Biological Knowledge and Science Process Skills. International journal of environmental & science education, 12(8), 1871-1878.
- Best,J.W., & Khan,J.V.(2010).Research in Education (9<sup>th</sup> Ed).New Dehi:Prentice Hall of India Pvt.Ltd.
- Boda, P.,&Weiser,G.(2018).Using POGILs and Blended Learning to Challenge Preconceptions of Student Ability in Introductory Chemistry. Journal of College Science Teaching,4(1),60-67. Retrieved from https://eric.ed.gov/?q= pogil&pg = 3& id=EJ1191341.

- Brown,S.D.(2010). A Process-Oriented Guided Inquiry Approach to Teaching Medicinal Chemistry. American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education, 74(7),1-6. Retrieved from https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/ pmc/articles/ PMC2972515/pdf/ajpe121.pdf.
- Deepasree, V.S. (2011). Science Process Skills and Scientific Attitude in Relationship with Achievement in Chemistry of Eight Standard Students. Unpublished M.Ed Thesis, Mahatma Gandhi University, Kottayam.
- Gale,S.D & Boisselle,L.N.(2015). The Effect of POGIL on Academic Performance and Academic Confidence. Science Education International,26(1),56-61. Retrieved from http://www.icaseonline.net/ sei/march2015/p4.pdf.
- Hein,S.M.(2012). Positive Impacts Using POGIL in Organic Chemistry. Chemical Education Research,89 (7), 860– 864.doi: 10.1021/ed100217v.
- Hu,H.H., Shepherd,T.,D.(2013). Using POGIL to Help Students Learn to Program. ACM Transactions on Computing Education,13(3), doi: 10.1145 /2499947. 2499950.

- Jyotsna, C. (2016). POGIL-A New Dimension in Higher Education. Journal of Engineering Education Transformation. 29(3),8-13.doi: 10.16920/jeet/ 2016/v29i3/85189.
- Michael, J. (2006). Where's the Evidence that Active Learning Works? Adv. Physiology Education, 30, 159-167.
- Mullins, M.H.(2017). Actively Teaching Research Methods with a Process Oriented Guided Inquiry Learning Approach. Journal of Teaching in Social Work, 37(4),309-321.Retrieved from https://doi.org/ 10.1080/08841233. 2017. 1347122.
- Ongowo, O.R. (2017). Secondary School Students' Mastery of Integrated Science Process Skills in Siaya County, Kenya. Scientific Research Publishing, 8,1941-1956. doi: 10.4236/ce.2017.812132.
- Rege,P., Havaldar,F., Shaikh,G.(2016). An Effective Use of POGIL in Improving Academic Performance of Students and Their Approach in Organic Chemistry. International Journal of Science and Research Methodology, 4(1),45-61.Retrieved from http://ijsrm.humanjournals.com.

# Organizational Climate and Behavioural Problems among Orphan Students of Secondary Schools

Rev. Dr. Shibu Luke

(Principal, Nirmala Higher Secondary School, Muvattupuzha, Kerala)

#### **Abstract**

An orphan is a child who has lost one or both of his parents. Orphan students in secondary schools have a lot of problems with regard to their behaviour. They are brought up in a surroundings which we call an orphanage. Each orphanage is under an organizational setup which we call organizational climate. The concept of organizational climate refers to the important aspects of overall context, environment or situation. The major objective of the present study was to find out the relationship between behavioural problems and organizational climate among orphan students of secondary schools. The study also aimed to find out the level of behavioural problems among orphan students.of secondary schools. The study was based on a sample of 300 IXth standard orphan students of Ernakulam district. The findings of the study revealed that there exists a significant relationship between organizational climate and behavioral problem of orphan students of secondary schools. It also revealed that 34% of orphan students of secondary schools have low level of behavioural problems, 33% have moderate level and 33% have high level of behavioural problems.

**Key words**: Organizational climate, Behavioural problems, Orphan students, Orphanage, Environment etc.

### Introduction

The secondary education commission has observed: "Education is the training of character to fit the student to participate creatively as citizens". Good acts and habits are the basis of good character and therefore character formation is a continuous process from birth to death. It is true in the case of all individuals, irrespective of his/her socio, economic or cultural background.

An orphan is a child who has lost one or both of his parents. Orphan students in secondary schools have lot of problems with regard

to their behaviour. They are brought up in a surroundings which we call an orphanage. There are many orphanages in Kerala. Each orphanage is under an organizational setup which we call organizational climate. The environment provides a network of forces and factors which engulf and play on the orphans of any orphanage. The organizational climate should always place emphasis on creating a good environment for the orphan students which helps to lessen their behavioural problems. Behaviour problems of institutionalized children have also been examined in recent studies. These studies have found that orphan children display rather unique behaviour

problems when compared with either home-reared non-adopted children or with country-adoptees.

Often it is noticed that many of the orphans face a variety of problems. Which vary from orphanage to orphanage. We can call the atmosphere of an orphanage organizational climate. The concept of organizational climate refers to the important aspects of overall context, environment or situation. In this study the investigator analyses the situation of orphanages as organizational climate. Organizational climate is often defined as the recurring patterns of behaviour, attitudes and feelings that characterize life in the organization. Reichers and Schneider (1990) define organizational climate as "the shared perception of the way things are around here". In this research, the investigator considers the organizational climate as the behavioural pattern of the organization. A number of literature denotes the point that organizational climate is a good environment that leads to reduce the behavioural problems.

### Need and Significance of the Study

The investigator is a frequent visitor of many orphanages especially in his native place where he got acquainted with the inmates of the orphanage. While visiting various orphanages, the investigator has noted some observable changes in the behavioural patterns of different orphanages. In some orphanages the behaviour of the inmates is problematic. It has been seen very often that some of them are prone to much naughtiness. The investigator finds that one major cause of problematic behaviour is the contaminated atmosphere that exists in organizational climate. The organizational setup influences the behavior of the orphans very much. In some orphanages enforcement of discipline takes the form of pressure and instills fear in the orphans. The ultimate aim of enforcing discipline should be to develop self-control in the orphans. In such an organizational climate the orphan should never be allowed to feel that he is not loved by anyone. So organizational climate is considered very much related to behavioural problems.

In this context the investigator finds it an urgent necessity to study the behavioural problems of the orphan students and the organizational climate.

### Statement of the Problem

The study has been entitled as Organizational Climate and Behavioural Problems among Orphan Students of Secondary Schools.

### **Operational Definitions of the Key Terms**

### 1. Organizational Climate

Organizational climate is a relatively enduring quality of the internal environment that is experienced by its inmates. It influences their behaviour and can be described in terms of the values of a particular set of characteristics of the organization.

### 2. Behavioural Problems

This term is specially noted here as behavioural problems of the orphan students. Those students whose behavior is not normal meets with problems of adjustment in one way or another. Though a number of such behavioural problems can be sorted out, the investigator limits himself the study to four problems - aggression, stealing tendency, lying habit and annoying others.

### **Objectives of the Study**

 To find out the level of behavioural problems among orphan students.of secondary school

- To compare the level of behavioural problems among orphan students of secondary school with respect to gender.
- To compare the level of behavioural problems among orphan students of secondary school with respect to locality.
- To find out the relationship between behavioural problems and organizational climate among orphan students of secondary schools.
- To find out the relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour among orphan students of secondary schools.
- To find out the relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit among orphan students of secondary schools.
- To find out the relationship between organizational climate and lying tendency among orphan students of secondary schools.
- To find out the relationship between organizational climate and annoying tendency among orphan students of secondary schools.

### Hypotheses of the Study

- There is a significant relationship between behavioural problems and organizational climate among orphan students of secondary schools.
- 2. There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour among orphan students of secondary schools.
- There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit among orphan students of secondary schools.

- There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and lying tendency among orphan students of secondary schools.
- There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and annoying tendency among orphan students of secondary schools.
- There is a significant difference between the behavioural problems of male and female orphan students of secondary schools.
- There is a significant difference between the behavioural problems of urban and rural orphan students of secondary schools.

### Methodology

In the present study the investigator followed survey method and has adopted simple random sampling technique for selecting the sample.

### Variables in the Study

- Organizational climate and .
- Behavioural problems.

### Population and Sample

Population of this study consists of the orphan students of secondary schools in Eranakulam District. There are about 3000 orphan students studying in various secondary schools in Ernakulam District. Sample of the present study consists of 300 IXth standard orphan students.

### **Tools Used for the Study**

### 1. Behavioural Problems Inventory

Behavioural problems inventory prepared by the invistigater was used to collect data related to behavioural problems including aggression, stealing tendency, lying habit and annoying others.

### 2. Organizational Climate Inventory

It was developed by Baldev R. Sharma. This inventory consisting of 40 items. It provides eight separate dimensions of organizational climate namely, Environment, Team Work, Management, Effectiveness, Involvement, Commitment, Material Background, Emotional Realm and Hopeful climate.

### **Procedure of Data Collection**

The investigator collected relevant data from 13 orphanages, consisting of around 300 students out of the estimated 3000 orphan students in various orphanages in Ernakulam district.

### Statistical Techniques Used

The important statistical techniques used to interpret and analyse the collected data are:

- Arithmetic mean
- Standard deviation
- ♦ Karl Pearson's co-efficient of correlation (r)
- 't' test

### Scope of the Study

The investigator hopes that the findings of the present study will help the future researchers and social workers who are interested in the fate of those children who are down trodden, abandoned and those who are in different orphanages. The investigator believes that the organizational climate of different orphanages influences the behavioural pattern of the inmates very much. It is expected that by analysing the behavioural pattern of orphans in different organizational set up will enable the future educators and social workers to concentrate more on the organizational climate of the orphan students.

### **Analysis and Interpretation**

The data analysed based on the objectives and hypotheses is presented below:

### 1. The level of behavioural problems among orphan students of secondary schools.

Based on the scores obtained for behavioural problems, the students were classified as Low Level, Moderate Level and High Level of behavioural problems. Its details are presented in table 1.

Table 1

Level of Behavioural Problems among
Orphan Students of Secondary Schools

Lo	w Mod		Moderate		gh	
N	%	N %		N	%	
102	34	99	33.0	99	33.0	

From table 1, it is that 34% have low level of behavioural problems. 33% have moderate level and 33% have high level of behavioural problems.

### The level of behavioural problems among orphan students with respect to gender.

Table 2
Level of Behavioural Problems with Respect to Gender

Low		Mod	derate	High		
Category	Ν	%	Ν	%	Ζ	%
Male	56	30.4	61	33.2	67	36.4
Female	46	34.7	38	32.8	32	27.6

From table 2, it is inferred that among male orphan students 30.4% have low level, 33.2% have moderate level and 36.4% have high

level of behavioural problems. Among female orphan students 34.7% have low level, 32.8% have moderate level and 27.6% have high level of behavioural problems.

### The level of behavioural problems of among orphan students with respect to locality.

Table 3

Level of Behavioural Problems with Respect to Locality

0-4	Low		Mod	derate	High	
Category	N	%	Ν	%	Ν	%
Urban	34	28.6	38	31.9	47	39.5
Rural	68	37.6	61	33.7	52	28.7

Ttable 3 shows that that among urban orphan students 28.6% have low level, 31.9% moderate level and 39.5 have high level of behavioural problems. Among rural orphan students 37.6% have low level 33.7% have moderate level and 28.7% have high level of behavioural problems.

### **Analysis bsed on Hypotheses**

### Hypothesis 1

H<sub>1</sub>: There is a significant relationship between behavioural problems and organizational climate of orphan students of secondary schools.

To test this hypothesis, it was converted to a null hypothesis as :

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant relationship between behavioral problems and organizational climate of orphan students of secondary schools.

Table 4
Relationship between Behavioral Problems and Organizational Climate

Variables	N	df	r	Significance
Br. Prlms.	300	208	0.296	Significant at
Org. Clt.	300	290	0.290	0.05 level

From table 4, it is observed that the calculated 'r' value is 0.296 which is greater than the table value at 0.05 level. So the null hypothesis that there is no significant relationship between organizational climate and behavioral problem is rejected at 0.05 level.

Hence it is concluded that there exist a significant relationship between organization climate and behavioural problems of orphan students of secondary schools.

### Hypothesis 2

**H**: There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools.

The corresponding null hypothesis formulated was :

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools.

Table 5

### Relationship between Organizational Climate and Aggression Behaviour

Variables	Z	df	r	Significance
Br. Prlms. Org. Clt.	300	298	0.246	Significant at 0.05 level

From table 5, it is observed that the calculated 'r' value is 0.246 which is greater than the table value at 0.05 level.

Thus the null hypothesis that there exists no significant relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour is rejected at 0.05 level.

Santhom Journal of Edu. RACE Vol.7: Issue 1. Feb. 2022

Hence it is concluded that there exists a significant relationship between organization climate and aggression behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools.

### **Hypothesis 3**

- **H**: There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit of orphan students of secondary schools.
- H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit of orphan students of secondary schools.

Table 6
Relationship between Organizational Climate and Stealing Habit

Variables	N	df	r	Significance
Br. Prlms. Org. Clt.	300	298	0.063	Not Significant at 0.05 level
Org. Cit.				at 0.05 level

From table 6, it is observed that the calculated 'r' value is 0.063 which is less than the table value at 0.05 level.

Thus the null hypothesis that there exists no significant relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit is accepted at 0.05 level.

Hence it is concluded that there is no significant relationship between organization climate and stealing habit of orhpan students of secondary schools.

### Hypothesis 4

**H**: There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and lying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.

**H**<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant relationship between organizational climate and lying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.

Table 7
Relationship between Organizational Climate and Lying Tendency

Variables	N	df	r	Significance
Br. Prlms. Org. Clt.	300	298	0.263	Significant at 0.05 level

From table 7, it is observed that the calculated 'r' value is 0.263 which is greater than the table value at 0.05 level.

Thus the null hypothesis that there exists no significant relationship between organizational climate and lying tendency is rejected at 0.05 level.

Hence it is conclude that there exists a significant relationship between organization climate and lying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.

### Hypothesis 5

- H: There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and annoying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.
- H<sub>o</sub>: There is no significant relationship between Organizational Climate and annoying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.

Table 8
Relationship between Organizational Climate and Annoying Others

Variables	N	df	r	Significance
Br. Prlms.	300	298	0.215	Significant
Org. Clt.	000			at 0.05 level

From table 8, it is observed that the calculated 'r' value is 0.215 which is greater than the table value at 0.05 level.

Thus the null hypothesis that there exists no significant relationship between organizational climate and annoying tendency is rejected at 0.05 level.

Hence it is concluded that there exists a significant relationship between organization climate and annoying others.

### **Major Findings**

The major findings of the study are given below:

- 34% of orphan students of secondary schools have low level of behavioural problems. 33% have moderate level and 33% have high level of behavioural problems.
- Among male orphan students 30.4% have low level, 33.2% have moderate level and 36.4% have high level of behavioural problems.
   Among female orphan students 34.7% have low level, 32.8% have moderate level and 27.6% have high level of behavioural problems.
- Among urban orphan students 28.6% have low level, 31.9% moderate level and 39.5 have high level of behavioural problems. Among rural orphan students 37.6% have low level 33.7% have moderate level and 28.7% have high level of behavioural problems.
- There exists a significant relationship between organizational climate and behavioral problem of orphan students of secondary schools.
- There exists a significant relationship between organizational climate and aggression behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools.

- There is no significant relationship between organizational climate and stealing habit of orphan students of secondary schools.
- 7. There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and lying habit of orphan students of secondary schools.
- 8. There is a significant relationship between organizational climate and annoying tendency of orphan students of secondary schools.

### **Educational Implications**

On the basis of the findings of the study the following recommendations are made for implementing in the field of education.

- The knowledge about the organizational climate of the orphanages helps those in the filed of social work or educationalist to understand the reason behind the problematic behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools.
- The present study reveals that the orphan students have different types of behavioural problems. So special care must be taken to provide necessary guidance and counselling for them.
- The behavioural problems can be solved through apt changes in the organizational climate.
- To elimate the behavioural problems of orphan students, the educationalist and social workers should try to improve the organizational climate.

### Conclusion

Behavioural problem is a serious matter in the psychological as well as educational field. Drastic changes in the area of behavioural problem can be obtained by changing the organizational climate. The present study reveals that there is significant relation between the organi-

zational climate and behavioural problems of orphan students of secondary schools. The person in charge of the orphanages or the organizational management can do a lot, to improve the mal-adjusted behavioural problems. The investigator believes that the findings of this study will be helpful in moulding the behaviour of orphan students of secondary schools in such a way by providing a good and virtuous organizational climate in each of the orphanages. This would lead to a better social life and acceptance. The investigator hopes that the findings of study will be helpful not only in the field of orphanages but also in the field of education.

### References

- Aggarwal J.C.(1999). Teacher and Education in a Developing Society, Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Ames, E.W. (1990). Spitz Revisited; A Trip to Romanian Orphanages, Canadian Psychological Association Developmental Section, Newsietter 9(2); 8-11
- Best, J.W. & Khan, J.V. (2006). Research in Education, Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Carter V.G. (2008). Introduction to Educational Research, Surject Publications, New Delhi.
- Chauhan, S.S. (1978) Advanced Educational Psychology, Vikas Publishing Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Chisholm, K. (1998). A Three year Follow-up of Attachment and Indiscriminate Friendliness in Children Adopted from Romanian Orpahanges, Child development 69(4); 1092-1106.
- Chazed (1973). Problems of Welfare of Institutionalized children in India, cited in M.B.
   Ruch (Ed) Second Survey Research in Education NCERT.

- Crow L.D. & Alice Crow (1956). Understanding Our Behaviour, Alfred Publications, New York.
- Draft R.L. (2004). Understanding the Theory and Design of organizations, Thompson Publishing Company, New Delhi.
- Garret H.E. (2004). Statistics in Psychology and Education, Paragon International Publishers, New Delhi.
- Hunt J.M.; Mohandessi, K.; Ghodessi, M. and Akiyama, M. (1976). The Psychological Development of Orphanage - Reared Infants: Intervention with outcomes: Tehran.
- Mangal, S.K. (2002). Stastistics in Psychology and Education, Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Pareek, V. (2006). Understanding Organizational Behaviour, Oxford Publications, New Delhi.
- Ramnath Sharma (2003). Educational Psychology, Kanishka Publishers, New Delhi.
- Rao C.N. (1999). Sociology, S. Chand & Company Ltd., New Delhi.
- Seetharam A.S. (2004). Philosopies of Education, Ashish Publishing House, New Delhi.
- Shrivastava (2003). Philosophical Foundations of Education, Kanishka Publishers, New Delhi.
- Skinner E. (1989). Educational Psychology, Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Suresh Bhatnagar & Anamika Saxena (2004).
   Advanced Educational Psychology, R. Lall Book Depot. Meerut.
- Taneja V.R. (1998). Educational Thought and Practice, Sterling Publishers Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.

# Relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students

Dr. Priya K. P

(Associate Professor, S.A.M. College of Education, Poothotta)

Keerthi A. M

(Assistant Professor, MES TTI Edathala, Aluva)

### Abstract

Democracy is a decision-making style where binding rules and policies are determined under the control of people. Democracy cannot be learned without experiencing it. If the individuals cannot find the medium in their personal and social lives to experience and practice the values and principles, which are tried to be taught in the name of democracy, it's not possible to expect them to become truly democratic people. Tolerance is the mutual understanding and co-operation between groups with different ethnicities, religions, political, ideologies and economic status. Religious Tolerance is a necessity for individuals within a society to get along, especially when a variety of cultures and people with religious beliefs live in one community or nation. The purpose of the present study was to findout the relationship between the Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among higher secondary school students. Survey was conducted on a total sample of 505 Higher Secondary school students in Kottayam and Ernakulam Districts. The study proved that there is significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary school Students.

**Key words :** Democratic Attitude, Religious Tolerance, Discrimination, Ethnicities, Perspectives. Coexistence etc.

### Introduction

The term democracy has various contested meanings. At its core is the idea of a government involving some form of "rule by the people" and a society that allows and upholds this practice (Dahl, 2001). Democracy is a decision-making style where binding rules and policies are determined under the control of people. An order which provides equal and direct participation right in this decision-making mechanism to all members of the society is also qualified as a democratic order. Democracy cannot be learned without

experiencing it. If the individuals cannot find the medium in their personal and social lives to experience and practice the values and principles, which are tried to be taught in the name of democracy, it's not possible to expect them to become truly democratic people (Sisman, 2006). Democratic attitudes and democratic thinking develop in the family and society in which the beliefs and attitudes of individuals develop informally. Later democratic values and attitudes gained in the family are developed by teachers who have adopted and internalized democratic values

and who are working in schools which are educational institutions (Büyükkaragöz,1995). Democracy can survive and develop only in the societies composed of individuals having internalized democracy as a course of conduct and implementing democratic principles in their lives. In this sense, maintaining democracy can be achieved through training individuals to adopt democratic values, in other words, through democracy education. In order to get the desired outcome from the education of democracy, it is necessary for the education and training activities to be carried out according to democratic principles, as well as manifest itself in the teachers' in-class and out-of-class behavior.

Classroom is a miniature form of society. Students are coming from different type of family backgrounds. The teacher should propagate democratic attitude through the classroom activities. There—should not be any discrimination or division or separation in classroom or any ground. Students learn to follow the democratic customs from the experiences of the classroom. From the classroom they learn to respect teachers and all others.

Tolerance is the mutual understanding and co-operation between groups with different ethnicities, religions, political, ideologies and economic status. It is seen as the basis for the longer and deeper process of developing a culture of peace, it is the minimal essential quality of social relations that eliminate violence and coercion. This simply affirmed that tolerance is the pathway to peaceful life and community, without which national development can attained.

The concept of "global village" and increasingly mobile lifestyles have led to a greater need for understanding and integration among people of differing social, ethnic, and religious backgrounds. Religious tolerance helps us to live peacefully with people of differing, or even opposing beliefs, accepting one another despite divergent worldviews. Our future may very well depend upon our ability to coexist peacefully with people of other faiths. If we believe that our future rests upon our ability to live together in peace, then our first responsibility is taking within ourselves at what stands in the way of that. We are entitled to hold strong convictions, but these must be tempered with a constant attitude of grace and humility toward others.

Every religion has certain positive moral instruction and peace generating practices. We need to cultivate respect and mutual consent on certain controversies and pave the way for even a staunch devotee of any particular religion to accent objective scrutiny. After which one would be ready to revise one's vision for a wider purpose of care, coordination and concern of everyone. Respect for other's faith and revision of one's own consequently provide the grounds for reorganizing of one's own faith and rituals while accommodating the faith and religious practices of others.

It is possible for us to compromise in many fields including religion. Many religious figures and scientists agreed that it is actually the paradoxical nature that the world itself make compromise condition of human living. However, we can deny that in our lives there are two kinds of excess, fanaticism and consumerism. On one hand we face the extreme of violence, but on the

other hand we face consumerism. To avoid unnecessary conflict coming from the two extremes tolerance is essential. In the lowest understanding about tolerance can stay polite by avoiding potentially dangerous topic if it may cause dispute.

### Need and Significance of the Study

"Democracy is a form of government in which its rulers are elected by the people" and it is a system of government by the whole population or all the eligible member of a state, typically through elected representatives.

Democratic Attitude means the attitude that underscores the point that people are the source of power in a democracy, and accordingly stress more on finding possible solutions, to help the citizen. Democratic Attitude gives sufficient solution to the students while approaching a common problem and it is not political oriented. Democratic Attitude must be innovative in nature.

A person develops attitude based on the experiences he received from the surroundings. A student spent sufficiently large time in schools where he or she gets opportunity to interact with number of individuals with different characteristics. India is a land of different religions and a student in school has to interact with persons belongs to different religions. Classroom is expected to maintain a democratic atmosphere from where the student automatically learned and imbibe principles of democracy.

There are many religions in the world. But religious harmony is exercised where people of different religion share mutual understanding and avoids committing religious violence. When there is religious Tolerance people work together by respecting each other's religion. It is matter of fact that each religion has its own importance. And there are social norms and values in the world to live in peace and prosperity. But people are intolerant of other religions and lots of blood has already shaded in the name of religion. As a result, people are after the blood of others in the world.

The investigators from their experience realize that children turn their face into social issues commonly at the age of adolescence. At this age they also suffer from some confusions in their role. So, an adolescence should develop certain characters like democratic attitude, tolerance and social adjustment for peaceful coexistence.

The investigators, after extensive survey of related literature found that not many studies have been conducted in this area. By realizing this fact, the investigators decided to conduct a study to find out the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School students. Higher secondary school students were selected because they have completed ten years of schooling and students from different streams namely, State syllabus, CBSE syllabus and ICSE syllabus are included in this group.

### Statement of the Problem

While schooling, students learn good manners and good behavior to interact with teachers and other students. The present research is an attempt to assess the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of Higher Secondary

school students. Therefore, the study is stated as Relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students.

### **Definitioon of Key Terms**

#### **Democratic Attitude**

Attitude is a positional readiness to respond to certain situation in a consistent manner and it has dynamic influence upon the individual's response to all situations with which it is related. Democratic Attitude is a stable and enduring predisposition of a person to behave or react towards persons, objects, or issues based on the principles of democracy.

### **Religious Tolerance**

Religious tolerance is the ability to recognize and respect other's beliefs and practices without sharing them and to bear or put up with. It includes the notion that the practice of different religious beliefs should be accepted and understood to be valid. In the present study Religious Tolerance is the scores obtained in the Religious Tolerance scale prepared by the investigator.

### Objectives of the Study

The objectives of the study are;

- To find out the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among higher secondary students.
- To find out the relationship between Democratic Attitude and religious Tolerance among higher secondary students classified on the basis of Gender.
- To find out the relationship between Democratic Attitude and religious Tolerance

among higher secondary students classified on the basis of Locale.

### Hypotheses of the Study

The investigator formulated the following hypotheses for the present study

- There is significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students
- There is significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students classified on the basis of Gender:
  - a. Boys b. Girls
- There is significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students classified on the basis of Locale:
  - a. Urban b. Rural

### Methodology in Brief

The present study was an attempt to find out the relationship between the Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary school students. To accomplish the task, the investigator selected survey method.

### Sample

The investigator conducted the present study on a representative sample of 505 Higher secondary school students in Kottayam and Ernakulam Districts. While selecting the sample due consideration was given to Gender and Locale of school. Stratified sampling technique was used to select the sample.

#### **Variables**

In the present study Democratic attitude and Religious Tolerance were selected as the variables.

### **Tools Used**

The tools used for the study are

- a. General Data Sheet
- b. Democratic Attitude (Prepared by Sankar ,2013)
- c. Religious Tolerance (Prepared by the investigators)

### Statistical Techniques Used

Statistical techniques employed in the analysis of data are;

### **Descriptive statistics**

- Mean
- Standard Deviation
- Skewness
- Kurtosis
- Decile

### Correlation analysis

- Pearson's Product moment coefficient of correlation
- Test of significance of correlation coefficient by Fisher's Test
- · Shared variance using 'r'

### Inferential Statistics

- Test of significance of difference between means of two large independent samples
- · One-Way Analysis of Variance
- Scheffe's Test

### **Data Collection Procedure**

Before starting the survey, the investigator prepared a tool for each variable. Each of the tools consists 50 statements. Then the response was collected from the sample of 505 Higher Secondary School Students of Ernakulam and Kottayam Districts.

### **Analysis Based on Hypotheses**

The analysis was done based on the hypotheses formulated as detailed below.

### Hypothesis 1

There is a significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School students.

The coefficient of correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance for the total sample was calculated using Karal Pearson Product Moment Correlation. and details of the correlation and other features of relationship are tabulated in Table 1.

Table 1.

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students

N	r	Fisher's 't'	Confidenceinterval	Shared Variance r² x 100
505	0.46	11.60	** (0.37, 0.55)	21

Note \*\* indicates 'r' is significant at 0.01 level.

 The table shows that 'r' between democratic attitude and religious tolerance among higher secondary students for the sample is 0.46. This shows that there

is a positive relationship between the two variables. From this result it can be concluded that greater the Democratic attitude, greater the Religious Tolerance.

- Fisher's t-value obtained by the test of significance of 'r' is 11.60. This t-value exceeds 2.58, the table value required for significance at 0.01 level, indicating that the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance is significant at 0.01 level of significance.
- The 0.99 confidence interval of 'r' is (0.37, 0.55). This suggests that the population 'r' lies between 0.37and 0.55, the probability of this being 99%.
- The percentage of variance shared between the variables for the total sample is 21% indicating that 21% of the

variance of the Religious Tolerance can be explained by the variable Democratic Attitude.

### Hypothesis 2

There is a significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher secondary students classified on the basis of Gender

The analysis for each of the sub samples of Gender is done separately

### Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Boys

The Correlation between Democratic attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School boys was calculated and the details of the correlation and other features of relationship are tabulated in Table 2.

Table 2.

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Boys at Higher Secondary Level

Gender	Ν	r	Fisher's 't'	Confidenceinterval	Shared Variance r <sup>2</sup> x 100
Boys	250	0 .53	9.83**	(0.43, 0.63)	28

Note \*\* indicates 'r' is significant at 0.01 level.

Pearson's coefficient of correlation 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of Boys is 0 .53. This shows that there is positive relationship between the two variables. From this result it can be concluded that greater the Democratic Attitude greater the Religious Tolerance.

- Fisher's t-value obtained by the test of significance of 'r' is 9.83. This t-value exceeds 2.58, the table value required for significance at 0.01 level of significance indicating that the relationship
- between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance is significant at 0.01 level of significance.
- The 0.99 confidence interval of Boys 'r' is (0.43, 0.63). This suggests that the population 'r' lies between 0.43 and 0.63, the probability of this being 99%.
- The percentage of variance shared between the variables for Boys is 28 %, indicating that 28 % of the variance of Religious Tolerance can be explained by the variable Democratic Attitude.

### Correlation between Democratic Attitude and religious Tolerance among Girls

The correlation between Democratic attitude and Religious tolerance among

Higher Secondary School girls was calculated and the details of the correlation and other features of relationship are tabulated in Table 3.

Table 3.

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Girls at Higher Secondary Level

Gender	Ν	r	Fisher's 't'	Confidenceinterval	Shared Variance r <sup>2</sup> x 1	00
Girls	255	0 .38	6.50**	(0.28, 0.48)	14	

Note \*\* indicates 'r' is significant at 0.01 level.

- Pearson's coefficient of correlation 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of among Girls is 0 .38. This shows that there is positive relationship between the two variables. From this result it can be concluded that greater the Democratic Attitude greater the Religious Tolerance.
- Fisher's t-value obtained by the test of significance of 'r' is 6.50. This t-value exceeds 2.58, the table value required for significance at 0.01 level of significance indicating that the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of among Girls is significant at 0.01 level of significance.
- The 0.99 confidence interval of 'r' is (0.28, 0.48). This suggests that the population 'r' lies between 0.28 and 0.48, probability of this being 99%.

The percentage of variance shared between the variables for girls is 14%, indicating that 14% of the variance of the Religious Tolerance can be explained by the Democratic Attitude.

### Hypothesis 3

There is a significant relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher Secondary School students classified on the basis of Locale.

The analysis for each of the categories of Locale is done separately

### Correlation between Democratic Attitude and religious Tolerance among Rural Higher Secondary Students

Pearson's coefficient of Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among rural Higher secondary students was calculated and the details of the correlation and other features of relationship are tabulated in table 4.

Table 4.

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Rural Higher
Secondary Students

Locality	N	r	Fisher's 't'	Confidenceinterval	Shared Variance r <sup>2</sup> x 100
Rural	230	0 .45	7.59**	(0.35, 0.54)	20

Note \*\* indicates 'r' is significant at 0.01 level.

- Pearson's coefficient of correlation 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Rural Secondary students is 0.45. This shows that there is positive relationship between the two variables. From this result it can be concluded that greater the Democratic Attitude greater the Religious Tolerance.
- Fisher's t-value obtained by the test of significance of 'r' is 7.59. This t-value exceeds 2.58, the table value required for significance at 0.01 level of significance indicating that the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance is significant at 0.01 level of significance.
- The 0.99 confidence interval of rural 'r' is (0.35, 0.54)). This suggests that the

- population 'r' lies between 0.35 and 0.54, probability of this being 99%.
- The percentage of variance shared between the variables for rural Higher secondary students is 20%, indicating that 20% of the variance in the Religious Tolerance can be explained by the Democratic Attitude.

### The Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Urban Higher Secondary School Students

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among urban Higher secondary school students was calculated and the details of the correlation and other features of relationship are tabulated in Table 5.

Table 5.

Correlation between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Urban Higher Secondary Students

Locality	N	r	Fisher's 't'	Confidenceinterval	Shared Variance r <sup>2</sup> x 100
Urban	275	0 .43	7.79**	(0.30, 0.56)	18

Note \*\* indicates 'r' is significant at 0.01 level.

- Pearson's coefficient of correlation 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Urban Higher secondary students is 0.43. This shows that there is positive relationship between the two variables. From this result it can be concluded that greater the Democratic Attitude, greater the Religious Tolerance.
- Fisher's t-value obtained by the test of significance of 'r' is 7.79. This t-value exceeds 2.58, the table value required for significance at 0.01 level of
- significance, indicating that the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance is significant at 0.01 level of significance.
- The 0.99 confidence interval of 'r' is (0.30, 0.56). This suggests that the population 'r' lies between 0.30 and 0.56, the probability of this being 99%.
- The percentage of variance shared between the variables for urban Higher Secondary students is 18.00%, indicating that 18.00% of the variance in the

Religious Tolerance can be explained by the variable Democratic Attitude.

### Major Findings of the Study

- Pearson's coefficient of correlation, 'r'
  between Democratic Attitude and
  Religious Tolerance among Higher
  secondary students is 0.46. This shows
  that there is a significant positive
  correlation between the two variables.
- Pearson's coefficient of correlation, 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of Boys is 0.53. This shows that there is a positive relationship with the two variables.
- Pearson's coefficient of correlation, 'r'
  between Democratic Attitude and
  Religious Tolerance of Girls is 0.38. This
  shows that there is a positive
  relationship with the two variables.
- Pearson's coefficient of correlation, 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of Rural Higher secondary students is 0.45. This shows that there is a positive relationship with the two variables
- Pearson's coefficient of correlation, 'r' between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance of Urban Higher secondary Students is 0.43. This shows that there is a positive relationship with the two variables

### Conclusion

This study was intended to assess the relationship between Democratic Attitude and Religious Tolerance among Higher secondary school Students. The finding of the study reveals that there is significant

relationship in the Democratic attitude and religious tolerance among Higher Secondary School Students. The investigator would be satisfied if the finding of the study would lead to better understanding of the teaching learning process. It is also hoped that researchers will be motivated to undertake further studies related to the present study.

### References

- Aggarwal, J.C. (2001). Teacher and education in a developing society. Vikas publishing house.
- Bay, Gundogdu, E., Kaya, K.,& Ibrahim.
  H. (2010). The perception of perspective
  teachers on the Democratic aspects of
  the Constructivist Learning Environment.
  Electronic Journal of research in
  Educational Psychology, 8(2),pp 617-642.
- Büyükkaragöz, S. (1995). Higher education programs and democratic attitudes. Ankara: TurkishDemocracy Foundation Publications
- Dahl, R. (2001). Democracy. In N. Smelser & P. B. Baltes (Eds.), International encyclopedia of social & behavioral sciences (pp. 3405–3408). Amsterdam: Elsevier
- Dewey, J. (1903). Elementary School Teacher. Chicago, The University of Chicago press.
- Garrison, J. (2012). Individuality, Equality and Creative Democracy-The Task Before Us. American Journal of Education, 118 (3),pp369-379
- Gulek,S., & Balcik,E.G.(2009). An Examination Of Democratic Attitudes Of Primary School teachers. Bulgarian Journal of Science and education policy,3(2),pp 179-190

- Harber, C. (2002). Education, Democracy and Poverty Reduction in America. Comparative Education, 38(3),267-276
- James, W. (1901-2). The varieties of religious Experience. Temple of Earth publishing.
- Kumral, O. (2014). Predicting Democratic Attitudes and Educational philosophies of student Teachers. International Journal of social science and Education, 4(2), pp 2223-4934.
- Lehtonen,M.(2013). The Development of Religious Tolerance: Co-operative Board Games with Children and Adolescents. International journal of undergraduate Research,2(2),pp1755-7429
- Perliger, A., Canetti, D., & Pedahzur, A. (2006).Democratic Attitudes among highschool pupils: The role played by perceptions of class climate. International Journal of Research,17(1),pp 119-140
- Raihani (2014). Creating a Culture of Religious Tolerance in an Indonesian School. South East Asia Reasearch,22(4),pp 2043-6874

- Shechtman, Z. (2010). Validation of Democratic Teacher Belief scale.
   Assessment in Education: Principles, Policy and Practice, 9(3), pp. 363-377
- Tas, A.Y. (2018). Examination of the relationship between the Democratic Attitude of perspective Techers and their communication skills, Universal journal of education 6(5), pp1060-1068
- Van der Walt, J.L. (2016). Religious tolerance and intolerance: 'engravings' on the soul: original research. Original Research A-Z publications, 50(1), pp 1018-6441
- Xu,R.(2009). A survey on the democratic Attitude of High school students and the schooling of democracy. Frontiers of Education in China, 4(1), pp 94-110

## Inclusive Education- Educational Rights of Children with Special Needs (CWSN)

Dr. Suresh Kumar. K
(Associate Professor, NSS Training College, Ottapalam)

### Abstract

Education is the systematic and deliberate process that equips the learner with knowledge, attainment of skills, values, and attitudes which enable them to participate effectively in all spheres of life. All people have a right to education without considering their abilities and disabilities. A lot of international human rights programmes and policies have established the right to education for all. This has become a legal right in India following a long period of action taken by the authorities. The Right to Education Act says about the Right of children to Free and Compulsory Education, passed by the Parliament of India enacted on 4th August 2009, which describes the modalities of the importance of free and compulsory education for children between 6 and 14 in India under article 21A of the Indian constitution. Inclusion means accepting diversity, respecting individuality and creating opportunity. Inclusion is a process. Inclusive education is about the participation of all children and young people and the removal of all forms of exclusionary practices. The Governments have to give the highest policy and budgetary priority to improve the education systems of differently abled children and enable to include all regardless of individual differences is one and the prime objective of the RTE act. Mainstreaming and integration are viewed as intermediary steps to the ultimate goal of teaching all students together.

Key words: Inclusive education, Transmission, Quality, Disbilities, Discrimination etc.

### Introduction

The entire process of education is worthless if it is not as per the consideration of the learner as an individual and as the part of a big society, so classrooms should be designed to welcome the diverse learners and address their individual needs. Education is the systematic and deliberate process that equips the learner with knowledge, attainment of skills, values, and attitudes which enable them to participate effectively in all spheres of life. The right to education has become a legal right in India following a long period of action taken by the authorities. The Right

to Education Act says about the Right of children to Free and Compulsory Education, passed by the Parliament of India enacted on 4<sup>th</sup> August 2009, which describes the modalities of the importance of free and compulsory education for children between 6 and 14 in India under article 21A of the Indian constitution.

Education always has as a stepping stone towards a beautiful life. In a wider sense education may describe as all the activities and programmes by which a human group transmits to others a body of knowledge and skills and a moral code which

enable the group to subsist. In this sense education refers to the transmission of knowledge to a subsequent generation of those skills needed to perform tasks of daily living, and further passing on the social, cultural, spiritual and philosophical values of the particular community.

Free and compulsory education was there, even as the independence movement. In the context of the Free and Compulsory Education Act. 2009, states should maintain minimum standards for the quality of teachers and schools. The act also tries to ensure full participation of parents as well the community by laying down the decision of School Management Committees, which will focus on the involvement of parents as well as members of the community. Comprehensive education is given more importance for inclusive education, and it came down to changes itself into the buildout should be done continuously and effectively.

The right to education is reflected in article 26 of the Universal declaration of Human Rights, which states that everyone has the right to education. Education shall be free, at least in the elementary and fundamental stages. Elementary education shall be compulsory. Technical and professional education shall be made generally available and higher education shall be equally accessible to all on the basis of merit. Education shall be directed to the full development of the human personality and to the strengthening of respect for human rights and fundamental freedoms. It shall promote understanding, tolerance and friendship among all nations, racial or religious groups, and shall further the activities of the United

Nations for the maintenance of peace. Parents have a prior right to choose the kind of education that shall be given to their children.

### **Educational Rights in International Perspective**

The Convention on the Rights of the Child (CRC) combined with the Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities (CRPD) form the heart of the international framework protecting children from education discrimination. These documents build upon the pre-existing international framework for human rights, starting with the Charter of the United Nations, which commits Members States to support and uphold the work of the UN organs, including that of UNICEF. The Universal Declaration of Human Rights (UDHR) defines the common standards of basic rights people need to survive and live dignified lives. The UDHR and its six subsequent instruments create the remaining foundation of the CRC and CRPD. The "Education for All" (EFA) initiative also contributes to the international framework concerning children with disabilities by seeking to provide all children, youth, and adults with quality basic education and was reaffirmed by the Dakar Framework for Action. The EFA initiative was launched at the World Conference on Education for All, after which the World Conference on Special Needs Education produced the Salamanca Declaration as a framework for action for regular schools to provide equitable access to education by accommodating the diverse needs of all children.

A lot of international human rights programmes and policies have established the right to education for all. The Universal

Declaration of Human Rights (1948) stressed the concept of education as a human right issue. The United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) Convention against Discrimination in Education (1960) is based on the principles of nondiscrimination and equal opportunities in education. The Convention on the Rights of the Child (1990), the most widely ratified international human rights treaty, focused the need for government authorities to ensure access to education for differently abled children.

The Salamanca Statement (1994) implies the importance of inclusive education, calling on governments to 'give the highest priority and to enable them to include all children regardless of individual differences or difficulties' and to 'adopt as a matter of law or policy the principle of inclusive education, enrolling all children in mainstream schools, unless there are compelling reasons for doing otherwise'. This commitment to inclusive education became a legal obligation through Article 24 of the 2006 Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities (CRPD), which reaffirms the right of disabled children to quality education and committed governments to ensure that 'persons with disabilities can access an inclusive, quality and free primary education and secondary education on an equal basis with others in the communities in which they live'. Article 32 places an obligation on donor governments to make their support 'inclusive of and accessible to persons with disabilities'.

### **Educational Rights in Indian Context**

The Right to Free and Compulsory Education (RTE) Act, 2009 mandates free and

compulsory elementary education to all children including CWSN. This act provides a legal framework that entitles all children between the ages of 6-14 years free and compulsory admission, attendance and completion of elementary education. Section 3 (2) of the RTE Act lays impetus on the elementary education of children with disabilities. As per the Amendment of 2012, it also mandates that, a child with multiple and/or severe disabilities has the right to opt for home based education.

The right to education has become a legal right in India following a long period of action taken by the authorities. Those responsible for drafting the Constitution of India (1949) were aware of the significance of education, giving it a prominent place in the Directive Principles of State Policy. In the following years, India leads the role with various human right issues and ensured the right to education for all. In the year 1993, the Supreme Court ordered that every citizen of India had the right to education up to the age of fourteen years. After this judgment, it was in 2002 until parliament approved the 86th amendment to the Constitution of India, which obligated the State to provide free and compulsory education to children from 6 to 14 years. But the Right to Education Act was only passed in 2009.

The RTE Act in India says that any student can claim for education with the provision of ample facilities, needs adequate support of the Government and other voluntary organizations. The act also ensures that the private educational institutions also reserve 25 percentage seats for children from the weaker and disadvantaged sections especially differently abled children. The act asked all

these schools to admit these students without admission tests and interviews. The 86<sup>th</sup> amendment of the constitution that made education a fundamental right was passed in the year 2002. The article 21A in the constitution, which was inserted as part of the 86<sup>th</sup> amendment assures free and compulsory education for all children up to the age of 14 years.

### Inclusive education: RTE-2009 Policies and Programmes

Many policies and programmes and legislative acts have framed for the education and welfare of the Persons with Disabilities (PwD) in India. A few major programmes introduced recently are, Programme of Action (PoA), 1992, Ramamurthy Review Committee (1992), Rehabilitation Council of India (RCI) Act (1992), District Primary Education Programme (DPEP) 1994, Persons with Disabilities (PwD) Act 1995, National Trust (NTA), Act 1999, and Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan (SSA), 2002. Despite the recommendations of policies, acts, and programmes the desired goals of Inclusive Education is not achieved.

### Milestone in Inclusive Education

The Right of children to Free and Compulsory Education Act, enacted the parliament by Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD) in August 2009 which aims to provide free and compulsory education up to class VIII to all children in 6-14 age group has come into effect from April 1, 2010, with this India has joined a select few countries in the world where education is a Fundamental Right. The introduction of Right to Education Act marked a major milestone in the history of India. Education is not only a fundamental right,

but also a basic necessity to be able to participate in one's community and flourish in life. The key aim of the progressive nature of educational change is to benefit all learners including those with special educational needs. Inclusive education is an educational system where children with disabilities get an equal opportunity for education with other children with full participation and the needed support services which include fulfillment of their special needs (Goel, 2010).

The concept of Inclusive education allows each student to feel respected, confident and safe so he or she can learn and develop to his or her full potential. It is based on a system of values and beliefs centered on the basis of their best interest. Inclusive education also promotes social cohesion, belonging, active participation in learning, a complete school experience, and positive interactions with peers and others in and outside the school. Inclusive education is carried out through a range of public and community programs and services available to all students. Inclusion is a process. Inclusive education is about the participation of all children and young people and the removal of all forms of exclusionary practices (Bartons, 1998).

It is estimated that at least one child in ten is born with a moderate or severe disability. The differently abled children were one of the most neglected groups in almost every society. Only a minority of the disabled received good health care and education. Earlier, most educators believed that children with physical, sensory or intellectual disabilities were so different that they could not participate in the activities of a common school (Advani, 2002). Inclusive education

is sometimes seen as a political strategy based on human right and democratic principles that confront all forms of discrimination, as part of a concern to develop an inclusive society. The important point is that inclusive education allows children with disabilities to stay with their family and to go to the nearest school just like all other children. But in practice, it is not up to the level. Inclusive education is a programme that is gaining wide attention and has been described as a social movement against exclusion in education. It has its focus on the restructuring of mainstream schools and able to respond to the diversity of all students (UNESCO, 2005). In short, inclusive education emphasized that the differently abled children should be fully included in school programmes and activities. Inclusion finally leads to the empowerment of all children (Loreman, Deppeler and Harvey, 2005).

# Barriers to Equitable Education for Children with Disabilities

Barriers to Equitable education encompass two dimensions: fairness or guaranteeing no personal or social circumstance inhibits education access, and inclusion, or ensuring all students have access to the same standard of education. A large variety of factors inhibit equitable access to education. Policy and systemic factors include discriminatory policy that segregates students or a lack of any policy that addresses students with disabilities, limited resources to enact policy, or limited training for teachers. Social factors include negative social and parental attitudes concerning disabilities, sometimes due to religious or cultural views of disabilities as punishments. School factors include

inadequate teacher training in inclusive methodology and a lack of funding leading to inappropriate and inaccessible facilities, high student-teacher ratios, and too little support for students with disabilities. Addressing all of these factors hinges on addressing several specific barriers to equitable education for children with disabilities.

Creating Inclusive Education Systems Equitable access to education requires inclusive education to ensure that all students have access to the same standard of education. Education systems can be categorized into three levels of access for children with disabilities: segregated education where certain groups of children are educated at home or in special schools, integrated education, and inclusive education. The concept of inclusive education holds that while children have different characteristics, abilities, and needs, they should be able to learn together in an environment that does not establish differences between individual children but rather views integration as opportunities for change and enriched learning.

# Conclusion

Children with disabilities face significant barriers to equal access to education. UNICEF works to establish equitable education systems to help equalize the ability of children both with and without disabilities to access the same quality of education. While several challenges have been identified, past work has also identified ways to move forward and increase equitable access. The Government's approach continues to be one of promoting inclusive education, but special education is also made available to those who need it. The Right of Children

to Free & Compulsory Education (RTE) Act, 2009 came into force from April 1, 2010. The RTE Act provides for free & compulsory education to children including children with differential abilities as mentioned in Persons with Disabilities (Equal Opportunities, Protection of Rights and Full Participation) (PwD) Act, 1995 and the National Trust for the Welfare of Persons with Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Mental Retardation and Multiple Disabilities Act, 1999. In short, the RTE Act provides every child between the age of 6 and 14 years free and compulsory education and a corner stone in the success of inclusive education.

# References

- Advani, L. (2002). Education: A Fundamental Right of Every Child regardless of His/Her special needs. Journal of Indian Education: Special Issue on Education on Learners with special Needs. New Delhi: NCERT.
- Barton L. (1998). The politics of special educational needs: Lewes: Falmer Press.
- Bellard, K. (1995). Inclusion in Practice:
   A case study of meta theory and action.

   Paper delivered at the symposium on inclusion and exclusion. University of Cambridge.
- Dash, N. (2012). Inclusive education: For children with special needs. New Delhi: Atlantic Publishers.
- Education for All, (1990). Report Retrieved on March 14, 2018 from http:// www.unsesco.org.

- Goel, S.L. (2010). Social welfare Administration: Social justice and empowerment. New Delhi: Deep & Deep Publication Pvt. Ltd.
- Indian Education Commission, Report of Planning Commission of India. Retrieved from http://planning commission nic.in.
- Loreman, T., Deppler, J., & Harvey, D. (2005). Inclusive Education: A Practical guide to supporting diversity in the classroom. London: Routledge Falmer.
- National Policy on Education (1986).
   Government of India. Department of Education. Ministry of Human Resource Development, New Delhi: www.ncert.nic.in.
- Norwich, B. (2002). Education, inclusion and individual differences: Recognizing and resolving dilemmas, British Journal of Educational Studies, London.
- Right to Education Act, (2009). About Right to Education. Retrieved from righttoeducation.in/know-your-rte/about
- UN convention on the Rights of persons with Disabilities, (2006). Report Retrieved on March 14, 2013 from http:// www.un.org./disabilities/ convention.
- UNESCO (2005). Review of the Present Situation in Special Needs Education, Paris.

# Effectiveness of SQ3R Method on Achievement in Social Studies among Ninth Standard Students

Seena M. A.

(Formar M. Ed Student, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu)

Rev. Dr. Johnson Mathew

(Vice Principal, St.Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu)

# Abstract

Social studies have played a predominant role not only in the advancement of civilization in general but also in the development of society. The school curriculum of this subject has undergone various changes from time to time in accordance with the changing needs of the society. Each emerging new model either explores a new approach or attempts a modification of the conventional ones as to cater to the uniqueness of individuals. Learning of social studies for a large number of students is not at all interesting and the reason is the lack of good teaching method. Mainly classrooms are teacher centred and there is no role for pupils. The purpose of the present study is to find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing the social science achievement of ninth standard students. The investigator adopted quasi experimental method with pre-test, post-test non-equivalent group design. The population taken for the present study was all ninth standard students of Idukki district, following Kerala state syllabus and the sample was 62 ninth standard students of St. Sebastian's HS Thodupuzha. The findings of the study showed that SQ3R method is more effective among ninth standard students for enhancing the social studies achevement than the prevailing method.

Key words: Predominant role, Traditional classrooms, Teacher centred etc.

# Introduction

Social studies have a main part in school curriculum. This subject has provided history about ancient, midival and modern society. This subject has wider application in day today life. It deals with all sphere of life that means society, politics, economics, and civics. Without this subject one cannot understand about history and cannot decide many issues in our day today life. Social studies have played a predominant role not only in the advancement of civilization in

general but also in the development of society. The curriculum of this subject has undergone various changes from time to time in accordance with changing needs of the society.

The traditional classrooms sometimes resemble a one man show with a captive but often uninvolved audience. Classes are usually teacher centred. The teachers try to transfer their thoughts and ideas to passive students. The goal of the learner is to accept the explanation or methodology expostulated

by the teacher. To improvise the instruction various methods were introduced. The situation demands a shift from teacher centred to learnercentred education.

The number of emerging methods are uncountable. Each emerging new model either explores a new approach or attempts a modification of the conventional ones as to cater the uniqueness of individuals. Most important is that, any teaching method should optimize learning experiences to the needs of each learner by carefully exploring the learning problems and offering tailored assistance.

# Need for the Present Study

Learning of social studies for a large number of students is not at all interesting and the reason is the lack of good teaching method. Mainly classrooms are teacher centred and there is no role for pupils. But in SQ3R method we can use survey, question, read, recite and review for studying social studies. So it is expected that this method will be highly effective for increasing achievement of students.

# Statement of the Problem

The title of the study is Effectiveness of SQ3R Method on Achievement in Social Studies among Ninth Standard Students.

# Operational Definition of the Terms SQ3R method

SQ3R method is one of the metacognitive strategies and is based on some extremely well established principles of learning and findings from cognitive psychology. It is the acronym of survey, question, read, recite, and review.

- 1. Survey Read chapter outlines, chapter headings, recaps, objectives, etc.
- 2. Question Formulate questions you believe will be addressed in reading
- Read Read material quickly, carefully, actively; try to answer previously formulated questions
- Recite Explain aloud to yourself or another person what you have read; use study guide; answer questions at end of chapter
- Review Go back over what you have learned; use study guide; reread recaps, reviews, or end of chapter summaries.

# **Ninth Standard Students**

The present study ninth standard students means those who are studying in ninth standard following kerala state syllabus.

# **Achievement**

Achievement is considered to be the total score obtained by an individual as measured in the achievement test. Here it means the effect of SQ3R method teaching on achievement in social studies among 9th standard students.

# Objectives of the Study

- To find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing the social science achievement of ninth standard students.
- 2. To find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing the social science achievement of ninth standard boys.
- 3. To find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing the social science achievement of ninth standard girls.

# Hypotheses oth the Study

- There is a significant difference between the means of the gain scores of social studies achievement in the control group and the experimental group of ninth standard students.
- There is a significant difference between the means of the gain scores of social studies achievement of boys of the control group and the experimental group of ninth standard students.
- 3 There is a significant difference between the means of the gain scores of social studies achievement of girls in the control group and the experimental group of ninth standard students.

# **Method Adopted**

The investigator adopted quasi experimental method with pre-test, post-test non-equivalent group design.

### **Variable**

In the present study the independent variable was SQ3R method and dependent variable was achievement in social studies.

# Population and Sample

The population taken for the present study was all ninth standard students of Idukki district, following Kerala state syllabus and the sample was 62 ninth standard students of St. Sebastian's HS Thodupuzha.

# Tools Used for the Study

 Lesson transcript based on SQ3R method prepared by the investigator for experimental group.

- Lesson transcript based on prevailing method prepared by the investigator for control group.
- 3. Achievement test

# Statistical Techniques Used

# **Descriptive statistics**

Mean and standard deviation

# Inferential Statistics

't' test and ANCOVA.

# Analysis and Interpretation

Analysis and interpretation was done based on the objectives.

# Objective 1

The first objective of the study was to find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing social studies achievement of ninth standard students. For analysing this objective the investigator formulated the hypothesis as :

H<sub>1</sub>: There is a significant difference between the means of gain scores of social studies achievement in the control group and experimental group of ninth standard students.

To test this hypothesis it was changed into null hypothesis as:

H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference between the means of the gain scores of social studies achievement of the control group and experimental group of ninth standard students.

Two tailed 't'-test was employed to test the null hypothesis at the level of significance 0.01. The results are given in the table 1

Table 1

Number (N), Mean of the Gain Scores, Standard Deviation, and 't'- value of Gain Scores of Achievement of Control Group and Experimental Group

Gain scores	N	Mean of the gain D	SD	't' value	Result	
Control group	31	2.32	1.40	5.71	Significant at	
Experimental group	31	6.52	3.85	5.71	0.01 level	

# Interpretation

Table 1 shows that the means of gain scores obtained for control group and experimental group were 2.32 and 6.52 respectively. The calculated 't' value (5.71) is greater than the theoretical 't' value (2.66) at 0.01 level of significance. Hence the null hypothesis was rejected and the research hypothesis was retained. Therefore it is possible to conclude that there is a significant difference between the gain scores of achievement in the control group and in the experimental group. It means that the SQ3R method is effective for enhancing the social studies achievement of ninth standard students.

# Objective 2

The second objective was to find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for

enhancing social studies achievement of ninth standard boys.

Corresponding to this objective the research hypothesis was formulated as:

- H<sub>1</sub>: There is a significant difference between the gain scores of social studies achievement of boys in the control group and experimental group of ninth standard.
   It was changed into null hypothesis to test it inferentially.
- H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference between the gain scores of social studies achievement of boys in the control group and experimental group of ninth standard.

Two tailed 't'-test was employed to test the null hypothesis at the level of significance 0.01. The results are given in the table 2

Table 2

Number(N), Mean of the Gain (X) and 't' value of Achievement of Control Group and Experimental Group Boys

Gain scores	N	Mean of the gain X	SD	't' value	Result	
Control group boys	16	1.81	1.07	6.07	Significant	
Exp. group boys	15	8.13	3.88	0.07	at 0.01 level	

# Interpretation

Table 2 shows that the means of gain scores of control group and experimental group obtained were 1.81 and 8.13. The calculated 't' value (6.07) is greater than the theoretical 't' value (2.76) at 0.01 level of significance. Hence the null hypothesis was rejected and the research hypothesis was retained. Therefore it is possible to conclude that there is a significant difference between the gain scores of achievement of boys in the control group and experimental group. As the mean of gain scores of experimental group is higher than that of the controle group and since there exists a significant difference between the means it was concluded that the SQ3R method is highly effective for enhancing achievement of boys in standard nine.

# Objective 3

Third objective was to find out the effectiveness of SQ3R method for enhancing social studies achievement of ninth standard girls. For this objective the investigator formulated a hypothesis as:

- H<sub>1</sub>: There is a significant difference between the gain scores of social studies achievement of girls in the control group and experimental group of ninth standard. It was changed into null hypothesis to test it inferentially as:
- H<sub>0</sub>: There is no significant difference between the gain scores of social studies achievement of girls in the control group and experimental group of ninth standard.

Two tailed 't'-test was employed to test the null hypothesis at the level of significance 0.01. The results are given in the table 3.

Table 3

Number (N), Mean of the Gain Scores, SD and 't' value of Achievement of Control Group and Experimental Group Girls.

Gain scores	N	Mean of the gain X	SD	't' value	Result
Control group girls	15	2.41	1.5	2 40	Significant
Exp. group girls	16	5	3.14	3.18	at 0.01 level

# Interpretation

From table 3, it is clear that the means of gain scores of control group and experimental group obtained were 2.41 and 5 respectively. The calculated 't' value (3.18) is greater than the theoretical 't' value (2.76) at 0.01 level of significance. Hence the null hypothesis was rejected and the research hypothesis was retained. Therefore it is

possible to concluded that there is a significant difference between the gain scores of achievement of girls in the control group and experimental group.

# Major Findings of the Study

 SQ3R method is more effective among ninth standard students for enhancing the social studies achevement than the prevailing method.

- The instructional material based on SQ3R method is more effective than the prevailing method for enhancing the social studes achevement among the boys of standard nine.
- The instructional material based on SQ3R method is more effective than the prevailing method for enhancing the social studes achevement among the girls of standard nine.

# **Educational Implications of the Study**

The present study was to investigate the effectiveness of SQ3R method on achievement in social studies. The major findings of the study and the conclusions drawn from the findings helped the investigator to frame some measures to improve the achievement in social studies.

Findings of the study indicate that SQ3R method is more effective than the existing methods of teaching in enhancing social studies achievement among learners. So teachers can use this method for social studies teaching.

- SQ3R method helps for better understanding of the subject. SQ3R method mainly focuses self- reading, reciting and reviewing. It will help to students' deep knowledge and better understanding in the subject.
- This method is very helpful in developing reading capacity among students.
   Reading is one of the important techniques in SQ3R method.
- This method promotes cognition level in students.

 It promotes reviewing capacity among students as review is one of the main tools in this method. The main features of these method are that students will be made able to self-evaluation through weekend test.

## Conclusion

The investigator examined the effect of an instructional material based on SQ3R method on achievement in social studies among ninth standard students. Based on the findings it is concluded that instructional material prepared on SQ3R method is more interesting and effective as compared to the prevailing method. The investigator hopes on the light of the results of the study that the teachers will make use of this method in the teaching and learning of social studies.

# References

- Aggarwal, J.C. (1966). An Introduction to Educational Research. New Delhi: Arya book report.
- Arjun, N.K. (2004). Psychological bases of Education. Thiruvanathapuram: Atlantic books and Publishing Pvt. Ltd.
- Aggarwal, J.C. (1985). Theory and Principles of Education. New Delhi: Vikas Publishing House Pvt. Ltd.
- Best,J.W; & Khan, J.V. (2008). Research in Education (10<sup>th</sup> edition). New Delhi: Prentice hall of India Pvt.Ltd.
- Best,J.W; & Khan, J.V. (1999). Research in Education .New Delhi:Prentice hall of India Pvt.Ltd.
- Bar, A.S. (1995). Encyclopaediaof Educational Reaearch.Newyork:Macmillan.

- Bhattacharya, Srinibas (1996). Foundations of Education. New Delhi: Atlantic Publishers and Distributors.
- Chandra, SotiShivender; & Sharma, Rajendra K. (2004).Research in Education. New Delhi: Atlantic Publishers and Distributors.
- Coben, L.et al.,(2000). Research Methods in Education.Routledge Felmes, London and New York.
- Garret, H.E(2004).Statistics in Psychology and Education. New Delhi:Paragon International Publishers.
- Good, C.V.(1954). Methods of Research.
   Newyork: Applteon Country Crafts Inc.
- Khan, J.A. (2007).Research Methodology.
   New Delhi: APH Publishing Corporation.
- Kaul, L. (2005). Methodology of Educational Research. New Delhi: Vikas Publishing House.
- Kothari, C.R.(2005). Research Methodology Methods and Techniques. New Delhi: New Age International Publishers.
- Lenbug, Jeff. (2007). Guide to Research.
   New Delhi: Viva Books Private Limited.

- Lichtman, Marilyn. (2006). Qualitative Rsearch in Education a User's Guide.
   New Delhi: Sage Publications India Pvt. Ltd.
- Mangal, S.K. (1993). Statistics in Psychology and Education (2 nd ed.), New Delhi: Prentice Hall OF India Ltd.
- Rohilla Pradeep. (2010). Research Methodology. New Delhi: APH Publishing Corportion.
- Soman, K. (2008).Measurement and Evaluration in Education (3<sup>rd</sup>ed.). Trivandrum: Calicut University.
- Sankhala, D.P. (2007). Research Methodology in Education. New Delhi:Adhayan Publishers and Distributors.
- Singh, Y.K; &Bajpal, R.B. (2007).Research Methodology Techniques and Trends.
   New Delhi: APH Publishing Corporation.
- Sukhia, S.P.et al., (1976). Elements of Educational Research., New Delhi: Allied Publishers Pvt.Ltd.

# Relationship between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of Adolescent Tribal Students

# George Thomas

(Assistant Professor, St.Thomas College of Teacher Educatiion, Mylacompu, Thodupuzha)

#### Abstract

The target year of universal primary education in India was 1960. But due to various reasons the target is not achieved till now and it remains as a dream yet to be fulfilled. One of the important reasons for this is the backward position of the tribal people in the educational and economic field. The tribal people especially the adolescents have an inborn perceived loneliness that stands as a stumbling block in their participation of universal adult education. If we truly want to implement the universal adult education policy of India, we cannot overlook the case of the millions of the tribal people in India. With an objective of finding the relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students, the present study was undertaken. The study used survey method and the sample consisted of 150 adolescent students. Perceived loneliness scale constructed by the investigator and a study involvement inventory were the tools used for data collection. Analysis of the data revealed that the correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students is negative and it is significant at 0.05 level.

**Key words :** Perceived Loneliness, Study involvement, Adult education, Tribal people, Adolescent etc.

# Significance of the Study

According to Article 45 of the constitution of India, Universal Education is to be provided to all children up to the age of fourteen. The target year of universal primary education in India was 1960. Due to the magnitude of the task and lack of resources, the target could not be achieved and still it remains as a dream yet to be fulfilled.

When we analyse the reasons for this, as one of the reasons, we can see that educational policy of India has not

produced good results in the tribal areas. Though many of the tribal people have understood the importance of formal education, there are certain things that push them back in this field. One of the major factors which to come across and taken as part of the present study is the perceived loneliness of adolescent tribal students. The tribal people especially the adolescents have an inborn perceived loneliness that stands as a stumbling block in their participation of universal adult education. If we truly want to implement the universal adult education policy of India, we cannot overlook the case of the

millions of the tribal people in India. It is really a difficult task to make them participate in this policy as they themselves are reluctant to come forward. Special programmes and policies only will make them break the shell they have created among themselves.

In this sitution, the investigator tries to study the relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of the adolescent tribal students.

#### Statement of the Problem

The study is entitled as the Relationship between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of Adolescent Tribal Students

# **Definitions of Key Terms**

The definitions of the important terms used are given below:

# Perceived Loneliness

Perceived loneliness is a distress that results from discrepancy between ideal and perceived social relationship. Perceived loneliness is attributed to the lack of a relationship - emotional isolation and social isolation (Robert weirs, 1980).

# Study Involvement

It is a keen interest in the task, working with persistent an imagination and sharing the responsibility for own learning. Study involvement is defined as the degree of affect or feeling of being actively involved in once on learning process.

# Objectives of the Study

 To find out the relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students.

- To find out the relationship between the components of perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students.
- To find out the relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students with respect to gender.

# Hypotheses of the Study

- There exists a significant relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students.
- 2 There exists a significant relationship between the components of perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students.
- There exists a significant relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students with respect to gender.

# Methodology in Brief

Normative survey method was used for the study.

The population of the present investigation consisted of all adolescent tribal students in Kerala. Sample of present study consisted of 150 adolescent tribal students.

Variables: The variables of the present study include perceived loneliness and study involvement.

Tools: The following tools are used for the investigation. Perceived loneliness scale constructed by the investigator. Study involvement inventory prepared by Asha Bhatnagar (1997).

#### Procedure of Data Collection

The investigator visited the selected schools and hostels from where permission was taken in advance from the authorities. The investigator personally administered perceived loneliness scale and study involvement inventory among the sample students.

# Statistical Techniques Used

- Arithmetic mean
- Standard deviation
- Karl Penson's product moment correlation (r-value)

# Scope of the Study

The investigator hopes that the study will be helpful in the implementation of the universal education policy of our country. The target of universal Adult Education policy cannot be attained unless and until it spreads completely to the tribal areas. It is much needed to get rid of perceived loneliness of these students which is one of the important reasons for their non participation in the education activities. To give training for tribal people in such a way that they should come forward to express themselves with other people, the findings of the study will become helpfull.

# Limitations of the Study

- Due to the paucity of time the study is limited to the adolescent tribal students only.
- The sample is restricted to the adolescent tribal students of Idukki only.

# Analysis and Interpretatioon

The collected data were analysed based on the objectives.

# Analysis Based on Objective 1

# Analysis of relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of Adolescent tribal students

Correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students was found out using Karal-Pearson correlation method. Its details are given in table 1.

Table 1

Correlation between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of Adolescent Tribal Students

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	0.610	Significant at
Study Involvement	150	-0.619	0.05 level

Table 1 gives the correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.619 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative relationship between the two variables. Thus it can be interpreted that as perceived loneliness increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Analysis Based on Objective 2

Using Karal-Pearson product moment correlation method, the relationship between the components of perceiced lonelines and study involvement of adolescent tribal students

were found out. The components include general loneliness, emotional loneliness and social loneliness. Its details are presented here.

# Correlation between general loneliness and study involvement

Table 2

Correlation between General Loneliness and Study Involvement

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	-0.331	Significant at
Study Involvement	130	-0.331	0.03 level

Table 2 gives the correlation between general loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.331. This shows a moderate negative relationship between the two variables. Thus it can be interpreted that as general loneliness increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Correlation between emotional loneliness and study involvement

Table 3

Correlation between Emotional Loneliness and Study Involvement

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	-0.493	Significant at
Study Involvement	130	-0.493	0.05 level

Table 3 gives the correlation between emotional loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of

correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.493 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows that a significant negative relationship between the two variables. So it can be interpreted that as emotional loneliness increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice-versa.

# Correlation between social loneliness and study involvement

Table 4

Correlation between Social Loneliness and Study Involvement

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	-0.473	Significant at
Study Involvement	150	-0.473	0.03 level

Table 4 gives the correlation between social loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.473 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative correlation between the two variables. Thus it can be interpreted that as social loneliness increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Correlation between interpersonal loneliness and study involvement

Table 5

Correlation between Interpersonal Loneliness and Study Involvement

Variables	Z	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	-0.417	Significant at
Study Involvement	150	-0.417	0.03 level

Table 5 gives the correlation between interpersonal loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.417 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative correlation between the two variables. Thus it can be interpreted that as interpersonal loneliness increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Correlation between cognitive dimensions and study involvement

Table 6

Correlation between Cognitive Dimensions and Study Involvement

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	150	-0.450	Significant at
Study Involvement	130	-0.430	U.UJ level

Table 6 gives the correlation between cognitive dimensions and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.450 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative correlation between the two variables. Thus it can be interpreted that as cognitive dimensions increases, study involvement of the adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Analysis Based on Objective 3

Relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students with respect to gender was calculated using Karal Pearson

product moment correlation and its details are presented below:

Correlation between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of Male Adolescent

Table 7

Tribal Students

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	54	-0.604	Significant at
Study involvement of male Students	51	-0.004	0.05 level

Table 7 gives the correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of male adolescent tribal students. The value of Karl Pearson's coefficient of correlation is obtained as -0.604 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative correlation between the two variables for male students. Thus it can be interpreted that as perceived loneliness increases, study involvement of the male adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

Table 8

Correlation between Perceived Loneliness and Study Involvement of Female Adolescent Tribal Students

Variables	N	r	Significance
Perceived Loneliness	96	-0.623	Significant at
Study involvement of	90	-0.023	0.05 level
female students			

Table 8 gives the correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of female adolescent tribal students. The value of Karl Pearson's coefficient of correlation is

obtained as -0.623 which is significant at 0.05 level. This shows a significant negative correlation between the two variables for female students. Thus it can be interpreted that as perceived loneliness increases, study involvement of the female adolescent tribal students decreases and vice- versa.

# Major Findings of the Study

Through the analysis the following findings were obtained.

- The correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students is -0.619. This shows that there is a significant negative relationship between the two variables.
- The correlation between general loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students is negative. The value of correlation coefficient is obtained as -0.331. This shows a moderate negative relationship between the two variables.
- There is a significant negative correlation between emotional loneliness and study involvement of adolessent tribal students.
- There is a significant negative correlation between social loneliness and study involvement of adolessent tribal students.
- There is a significant negative correlation between interpersonal loneliness and study involvement of adolessent tribal students.
- There is significant negative correlation between cognitive dimensions and study involvement of adolessent tribal students.
- There is a significant negative correlation between perceived loneliness and study involvement of boys and girls of adolescent tribal students.

# **Suggestions**

The present investigation has highlighted several suggestions in various field relted to education of tribals.

- Home environment, schools and society plays a significant role for cognitive, affective and psychomotor development of children. So children should try to share their need, interest, problems, experiences and challenges with their parents and teachers. It helps childrens to create a good rapport with parents and teachers and it also helps the parents and teachers in developing deeper understanding about their children.
- Children should share all their experience with the members of their family or their teachers so that they can reduce their fear, and other negative emotions.
- Children should create a habit of udgustment with self, others and circumstances like sucess and happiness, failures and sorrows as part and parcel of their life. Students should understand this reality of life and makeup their mind to adjust with all situations of life for reducing their loneliness.
- The study points out that the children who have better home environment have less perceived loneliness. So it is the duty of parents, to arrange a favourable environment to the child for their all round development. Parents must allow children to participate in co-curricular activities in schools. Harsh punishment should be avoided and they should be allowed for interact with society and friends.

 Students may face various problems in schools. Teachers must identify these problems and provides guidance and counselling services. The teacher should identify chidren with poor home environment, poor vocational choice and high loneliness and they should be helped to overcome such difficulties.

# Conclusion

The study reveals that there is a significant relationship between perceived loneliness and study involvement of adolescent tribal students. The two variables are negatively co-related, that is, when perceived loneliness increases the study involvement decreases and vice-versa. So perceived loneliness should be eradicated properly from them during this period it self.

### References

- Aggarwal, K.G. (1970). Social development of tribal, New Delhi: Manohar Publications.
- Alkenburg, P.M. and Peter, J. (2007). Preadolescents and adolescents online communication and their closeness to friends. Developmental Psychology, pp.43, 2, 267 277. ERICC ORDER NO.EJ 756142.
- Anderson, C.A. and Harvey, R.J. (1998).
   Discriminating between roblems in living.
   An examination of measures of depression, loneliness, shyness and social anxiety. Social psychology. New York: Mac Graw. Hill, inc

- Anuraada, B.R. & Prakash I.J. (1999). Life satisfaction in Relation to Social interaction and Loneliness Among the Elderly. In IJ. Prakash (Ed.) Quality Aging (pp. 151-157). Varnasi: Association of Gerontology (India) B.H.U.
- Areharet, Joan (2005). Depression plus Loneliness may hasten Death in elderly.
   Psychiatric News. American Psychiatric Association. pp.40,2,53.
- Berg S. et al. (1981).Loneliness in the Swedish Aged. Journal of Gerontology.pp. 36,3,174-179.
- Best, J.W. and Kahn, J.V. (2008). Research in Education, New Delhi: Prentice Hall of India Private Limited.
- Brennan, T.(1982). Loneliness at Adolescent: In L.A. Peplau & (1982). Lonelin (Eds), loneliness: A Source book of Current Theor Research and Therapy. Newyork: Wiley.
- Cccen, A.Rezan (2008). The effects of gender and loneliness levels on ways of Coping. ERIC ORDER NO.EJ816934.
- Goswick, R.A & Jones, W.H. (1981).
   Loneliness, Self Concept and Adjustment,
   Journal of Psychology, pp.107, 240-273.
- Jones. W.H. et. al. (1981). 1 ne persi Stence of loneliness self and determinants. Journal or personality. Pp. 49,27-49.

# Legal Literacy Awareness among Secondary School Students

## Subin Mathew

(Former M. Ed. Student, School of Pedagogical Sciences, M.G. University, Kottayam)

# Abstract

Legal literacy connotes the knowledge of the primary level in law. After the citizens (particularly marginalized or underprivileged groups) become aware of the rights provided to them by law, they can use such awareness as a tool to fight injustices. Such awareness can transform their lives. The subject of functions of legal awareness remains to be controversial in general and in particular regarding the young people. The inability of the poor to access the justice system is attributed to illiteracy, destitution, economic and social bondages, cultural inhibitions and bureaucratic and political corruption resultantly, the poor are denied equal justice. The investigator in this study deals with the importance of legal literacy and awareness. The eternal value of the constitutionalism is the rule of law which has three facets i.e. rule by law, role under law and rule according to law. Law users are more dependent on the evidences while pleading the cases in court as well as studying the law education.

**Key words**: Empowerment, Consciousness, Articulate, Confronting, Ecosystem, Legal Education etc.

### Introduction

Legal awareness, sometimes called public legal education, is the empowerment of individuals regarding issues involving the law. Legal awareness helps to promote consciousness of legal culture, participation in the formation of laws and the rule of law.

Public legal education, sometimes called civics education, comprises a range of activities intended to build public awareness and skills related to law and the justice system. This term also refers to the fields of practice and study concerned with those activities, and to a social and professional movement that advocates greater societal commitment to educating people about the law. Anna Marie Marshall explains that

"in order to realize their rights, people need to take the initiative to articulate them. This initiative, in turn, depends on the availability and the relevance of legal schema to people confronting problems." This is because laws exist as part of a larger organizational ecosystem in which the interests of the organization as well as those of the actors become inextricably linked to the ways in which they are enacted.

Distinct from the education of students in law school seeking a degree in law (which is often simply called "legal education") and the continuing professional education of lawyers and judges (which is sometimes called "continuing legal education"), public legal education is principally aimed at people who are not lawyers, judges, or degree-seeking law students.

It is due to this situation, that Legal literacy has been recognized as a tool of qualitative change at the basic level as it provides them with the adequate knowledge of their rights. Legal literacy connotes the knowledge of the primary level in law. After the citizens (particularly marginalized or underprivileged groups) become aware of the rights provided to them by law, they can use such awareness as a tool to fight injustices. Such awareness can transform their lives. Legal literacy is the first step to that end. Further, the better awareness of laws is a contributing factor to help effectively in diverse spheres.

It should be borne in mind, however, that the issue of functions of legal awareness of young people is a not enough developed part of the theory of legal awareness. The scientists that are concerned with the issue usually limit themselves to an enumeration or a brief description of the functions of legal awareness in general. The subject of functions of legal awareness remains to be controversial in general and in particular regarding the young people. There is no unity in the definition of criteria and classifications of the functions of legal awareness, which, in its turn, causes a significant disparity in the notion as well as in the number of the functions, which are defined by different authors. Obviously, this has a negative effect on the development of issues concerning the legal awareness.

National Policy of education (1986) comments that, "every country develops a system of education to express and motivate its unique sociocultural identity and also to meet the challenge of time. The country has reached a stage in its economic and technical development when a major effort must be made to derive the maximum benefit from the assets already

created and to ensure that the fruits of change reach all sections. Education is the highway to that goal".

Education today is a matter of whole learning where a citizen has to learn all the aspects of the social life. It includes the legal life too. The investigator in this study deals with the importance of legal literacy and awareness.

Literacy in general refers to the ability to read and write, knowledge of a particular subject, particular type of knowledge. Literacy is critical to economic development as well as individual and community wellbeing. Literacy is the skills which are needed for reading and writing. They include such things as awareness of the sounds of language, awareness of print, and the relationship between letters and sounds. Other literacy skills include vocabulary, spelling, and comprehension.

One of the most striking features of Indian Legal system is adversary system. Due to ignorance of law and legal process, unintelligible and inaccessible procedure and prohibitively costly professional assistance and artificial distance prevails between administration of justice and life and living of the people. The inability of the poor to access the justice system is attributed to illiteracy, destitution, economic and social bondages, cultural inhibitions and bureaucratic and political corruption resultantly, the poor were denied equal justice. The need for providing legal aid to the poor is to keep the balance steady among the rich and the poor. If a rich man appoints a counsel for his defense, the balance is tilted and the right of the poor man is jeopardized. To keep the balance steady, the assistance of a counsel should be given to the poor persons at state expenses. The provision permitting a suit "informapauperis" and supplying

at the expense of the state an amicus curiae were certainly the potential predecessor of the movement which has in course of time assumed today a constitutional as well as statutory mandate. Statue recognizes the felt presence of a global movement.

The constitution of India has defined and declared the common goal for its citizens as "to secure to all the citizens of India, justice - social, economic and political". The eternal value of the constitutionalism is the rule of law which has three facets i.e. rule by law, role under law and rule according to law. Under our constitution, it is the primary responsibility of the state to maintain law and order so that the citizens can enjoy peace and security. The preamble speaks of justice, social economic and political and of equality of status and opportunity. It points out that protecting the interest of the poorer section of the society is the constitutional goal. So this very idea of protecting poor people cannot be promoted without the effective, efficient functions of the legal aid program and legal literacy program.

# **Background of the Present Study**

Law users are more dependent on the evidences while pleading the cases in court as well as studying the law education. The print information sources are abundantly available in the law profession, but searching information from the print resources is little difficult developing in the law areas. It is now necessary to identify the users in using digital resources and their awareness of availability. The present study is focused on identifying legal literacy awareness among the secondary school students. Law use is increasing and is ever growing in legal sector. Though change is slow, it is apparent that

innovation does exist within the legal sector. There is a need for creating a new way to train students and developing digitally competent citizens. Legal literacy is one component of being a citizen - a person who is responsible for how they utilize to interact with the world around them. There is a need to assess the legal literacy in students. Hence the researcher has planned to study the legal literacy awareness among secondary school students so that it should be made into consideration to know the level of awareness.

A basic knowledge of law has become necessary for all those who are engaged in administration, trade or industry. Hence, a change in the quality, content and complexion of legal education is now viewed as a great social necessity. Thus there is a need to bring awareness with people for their rights and duties, as well as remedies. In India, illiteracy is still there and people don't have knowledge of the various legal provisions running for their benefit. In such a changing society there is need to educate people. There is need to increase ambit of legal educations in the masses.

# **Need and Significance of the Study**

John Austin defined law as "A rule laid down for the guidance of an intelligent being by an intelligent being having power over him." Laws are made for the benefit of the people and are powerful, only if used correctly. Legal literacy means bringing awareness to the masses regarding the laws of the land and their respective rights. In India, people are not aware of the legal terminologies and the available provisions which are made for their benefit. India is a country with poor literacy rate, so major population is illiterate and not aware of their rights. Government have

been reframing the present statutes so the masses can avail their fundamental rights. Fundamental Rights are a set of rights contained in Part III of the Indian Constitution. It guarantees rights, such that all citizens can live their lives in peace and harmony. Such rights are a symbol of democratic government, these include Right to Equality and Freedom of Speech and Expression, and Right to assemble peacefully, follow and practice any religion, etc. People being ignorant of the laws face exploitations and few, who claim to know engage into faulty interpretations because they are not aware of the recent changes in the statutes. Therefore legal awareness is the present need of the society. It is pertinent for the overall growth, development and protection of the individuals. It is an important key to unlocking the doors for positive change and transformation in the society.

"Legal Literacy is essential for the survival of our Constitutional Democracy. The judicial set-up works on the presumption that all people are aware of their rights". People must be made aware of their rights and duties for a systematic functioning of the nation.

In the present study the investigator takes it into serious consideration as the lack of legal literacy awareness is familiar in the schools of the present secondary school scenario.

# Statement of the Problem

The present study is an attempt to compare legal literacy among students of Secondary schools. Hence the study is entitled as Legal Literacy Awareness among Secondary School Students

# **Definition of Key Terms**

The operational definitions of the important terms used in the title of the study are given below.

# **Legal Literacy**

Legal literacy is commonly understood as knowing the primary level in law. When citizens, particularly marginalized or under privileged groups, know what the law has to offer them, they can recognize and challenge injustices much more forcefully.

# **Secondary School Students**

Students who are studying in Standard VIII, IX and X are referred as Secondary School Students.

In the present study, the investigator considered the students who are studying in Standards IX and X in schools recognized by Government of Kerala.

# **Objectives of the Study**

- To study the nature of Legal Literacy awareness among Secondary School Students
- To compare the Legal Literacy awareness among Secondary School Students based on Gender.
- To compare the Legal Literacy awareness among Secondary School Students based on Locale.

# Hypotheses of the Study

- There will be significant difference in Legal Literacy awareness among Secondary School students based on Gender
- There will be significant difference in Legal Literacy awareness among Secondary School Students based on locale.

# Methodology in Brief

The present study was intended to compare legal literacy awareness among Secondary Students. Normative survey method was used for the study.

# Sample of the Study

The sample selected for the study consists of 500 Secondary School Students from Kottayam District.

# Tools for the study

- 1. General data sheet.
- Legal literacy test (prepared by the investigator)

# **Statistical Techniques Used**

For the present study the investigator used the following statistical techniques.

- 1 Descriptive Statistical Techniques
  - a. Mean
- b. Median
- c. Standard Deviation
- d. Skewness
- e. Kurtosis
- Inferential Statistical Techniques
   Test of significance of difference between means.

# Limitations of the Study

Though the investigator made a sincere attempt to make the study as valid and reliable as possible certain limitations have crept in. They are:

- The sample of the present study is limited to Secondary level, due to the constraints of time and effort.
- Only one component was considered while constructing the test of legal literacy which is legal awareness. More social variables may yield better results.
- In the sample upper primary school students were not included.

# **Analysis of the Data**

# Statistical Characteristics of the Variable Legal Literacy

The statistical characteristics of the variable Legal Literacy are presented in Table 1.

Table 1
The Statistical Characteristics of the Variable Legal Literacy

Variable	N	Mean	Standard Deviation	Skewness	Kurtosis
Legal Literacy Awareness	500	15.16	5.58	-0.73439	0.19228

The preliminary analysis of the variable Legal Literacy revealed the following details.

The total scores of the respondents may range from 0 to 25 for the Legal Literacy Test given by the investigator.

The mean and standard deviation of the variable Legal Literacy are 15.16 and 5.58 respectively. These values indicate that the group is with an appreciable mean score and is heterogeneous with some variation in the Legal Literacy Awareness. The skewness of the

distribution is -0.73439 which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed and more number of students obtained low scores in Legal Literacy compared to normal distribution. The kurtosis obtained is 0.19228 which indicates that the distribution is platykurtic in nature.

# **Analysis based on Hypotheses**

The investigator formulated the following hypotheses for the present study

 There will be significant difference in Legal Literacy among Secondary School students based on Gender.

Legal literacy scores were collected and

There will be significant difference in Legal Literacy among Secondary School Students

# based on locale.

# calculated with the measures of central tendency , dispersion, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 2

Legal Literacy based on Total Sample

Table 2 Results of Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis Score of Legal Literacy Awareness Based on Total Sample

Variable	N	Mean	Median	Standard Deviation	Skewness	Kurtosis
Legal Literacy	500	15.464	17	5.55	-0.73439	-0.19228

The table 2 shows the arithmetic mean for the total sample is 15.464 and the standard deviation is 5.55. The maximum possible score in legal literacy is 25. This shows that the legal literacy of secondary school students is found good. The value of median obtained 17 which shows the 50 percent of the secondary school students have scored above. The skewness of the distribution is -0.73439which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed. The kurtosis

obtained is -0.19228 which indicates that the distribution is Platykurtic in nature.

# Legal Literacy of Secondary School Students based on Gender

Legal literacy scores of boys and girls students were separately analysed and calculated the measures of central tendency, dispersion, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 3.

Table 3 Results of Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis Score of Legal Literacy Awareness Based on Gender

Variable	N	Mean	Median	Standard Deviation	Skewness	Kurtosis
Boys	250	15.38	17	5.57	-0.78007	-0.10983
Girls	250	15.54	17	5.55	-0.69362	-0.25035

Table 3 shows that arithmetic mean for the boys is 15.38 and girls is 15.54. The standard deviation for boys is 5.57 and girls is 5.55. The value of median obtained for boys group and that for girls group is 17. The skewness of the distribution is -0.73439 for boys which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed and that of girls is -0.69362 is also negatively skewed. The kurtosis obtained for boys is -0.10983 and that of girls is -0.25035.

# Legal Literacy of Secondary School Students based on Locale

Legal literacy scores were collected and calculated with the measures of central tendency, dispersion, skewness and kurtosis. The details are given in the table 4.

Table 4
Results of Measures of Central Tendency, Measures of Dispersion, Skewness, and Kurtosis
Score of Legal Literacy Awareness Based on Locale

Variable	N	Mean	Median	SD	Skewness	Kurtosis
Urban	287	15.88	17	5.68	-0.77745	0.046444
Rural	213	14.89	16	5.50	-0.61244	-0.56868

The table 4 shows the mean for the urban is 15.88 and rural is 14.89. The standard deviation for urban is 5.68 and rural is 5.50. The value of median obtained for urban is 17 and that for rural is 16. The skewness of the distribution for Urban is -0.77745 which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed and that of Rural is -0.61244 is also negatively skewed. The kurtosis obtained for Urban is 0.046444 and that of girls is -0.56868.

# Comparison of Legal Literacy Awareness among Secondary School Students

The Legal Literacy Awareness scores of relevant samples were found out separately and calculated the arithmetic mean and standard deviation. To compare the extent of legal literacy awareness of gender and locale, significance of difference between the mean values of the different groups was found out.

Comparison of Legal Literacy Awareness of Secondary School Students based on Gender

For this the legal literacy scores of boys and girls were separated and computed their mean and standard deviation and thus the significance of difference between the mean values by calculating the critical ratio.

Table 5
Data and Result of Test of Significance of
Difference between Mean Values of Legal
Literacy Awareness Scores Based on Gender

Group	Ν	М	SD	CR
Boys	250	15.38	5.57	0.000
Girls	250	15.54	5.55	0.208

Table 5, the mean and standard deviation of boys group is 15.51and 5.57and that of girls group is 15.4land 5.55. The critical ratio obtained is 0.208 which is less than both 2.58 at 0.01 level and 1.96 at 0.05 level. From this it is inferred that the difference between the mean values of boys and girls group is not significant at both levels. It means that there is no significant difference between the mean values of the scores of legal literacy awareness among boys and girls students even at 0.05 level. By analyzing the means it is seen that girls are having greater level of legal literacy awareness than boys.

# Comparison of Legal Literacy Awareness of Secondary School Students based on Locale

For this the legal literacy scores of Urban and Rural were separated and computed their mean and standard deviation and thus the significance of difference between the mean values by calculating the critical ratio

Table 6

Data and Result of Test of Significance of Difference between Mean Values of Legal Literacy Awareness Scores Based on Locale

Group	N	М	SD	CR
Urban	287	15.88	5.68	1.93
Rural	213	14.89	5.50	1.00

Table 6, shows that the mean and standard deviation of Urban is 15.88 and 5.68 and

that of Rural is 14.89 and 5.50. The critical ratio obtained is 1.93 which is less than both 2.58 at 0.01 level and 1.96 at 0.05 level. From this it is inferred that the difference between the mean values of rural and urban groups is not significant at both levels. It means that there is no significant difference between the mean values of the scores of legal literacy awareness among rural and urban students.

By analyzing the means it is seen that urban students are having greater level of legal literacy awareness than rural students.

# **Major Findings of the Study**

 The legal literacy awareness among secondary school students are above average for the total sample.

The mean for the total sample is 15.16 and standard deviation is 5.58 the maximum possible score in legal literacy questions is 25 and the least is 25. This shows that the legal literacy awareness of secondary school students are found good. The value of the median obtained is 17 which shows that 50 percent of the secondary school students had scored above 14.

 The legal literacy awareness among secondary school students of girls is greater than that of boys.

The arithmetic mean for the boys is 15.38 and girls are 15.54. The standard deviation for boys is 5.57 and girls is5.55. The value of median obtained for boys group and that for girls group is 17. The skewness of the distribution is -0.73439 for boys which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed and that of girls is -0.69362 is also negatively skewed. The kurtosis obtained for boys is -0.10983 and that of girls is -0.25035.

 The legal literacy awareness among secondary school students of Urban school is greater than that of Rural school.

St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu

The mean for the urban is 15.88 and rural is 14.89. The standard deviation for urban is 5.68 and rural is 5.50. The value of median obtained for urban is 17 and that for rural is 16. The skewness of the distribution for Urban is -0.77745 which indicates that the distribution is negatively skewed and that of Rural is -0.61244 is also negatively skewed. The kurtosis obtained for Urban is 0.046444 and that of girls is -0.56868.

## Conclusion

Legal literacy is an ability to enlighten ourselves about legal issues effecting the society we live in and empowerment of individuals regarding legal issues. Moreover it helps to promote consciousness of legal culture, participation in the formation of laws and the rule of law. Legal literacy also called Civic Education intends to build public awareness and skills related to legal system. It also refers to a field committed to educate people about law.

Legal literacy has certain objectives, like it promotes the legal awareness among the general public. It is very helpful in making people aware about their several legal rights like political rights, economic rights, education rights etc. Government is also taking initiatives to promote the concept of legal literacy in society as many legal sessions are organizing for general public.

The Constitution of India also provides many rights related to legal literacy. Legal literacy is a source of social development and growth of legal awareness among citizens. Without legal literacy people can get intimidated and alienated from law, which results as a backdrop as people have no access to justice. This leads to a

situation where people come to conflict with the law or are unable to obtain help from it.

#### References

- Acharya, N. K. (2004). Law relating to Arbitration & Alternative Dispute Resolution, Asia Law House, Hyderabad
- Austin, Granville (1967). The Indian Constitution: Cornerstone of a Nation, Clarendon Press, London.
- B.C.I Trust (1983). Legal Education in India status and problems, New Delhi.
- Bakshi, P.M.(1998). Public Interest Litigation in India I, Ashok law house New Delhi.
- Basu, Durga Das (1991). Introduction to the Constitution of India, Prentice Hall of India Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi.
- Baxi, Upendra (1985). Taking rights seriously: social litigation in the supreme court of India in Rajeev Dhawan, R Sudharshan and Salman khurshid, judges and the judicial power, Bombay Tripati.
- Bhagwati, P.N.(1985). Legal Aid as a Human Rightil. Dharwad: Jagrat Bharat
- Chitkara, M.G. (1930). LokAdalat and The poor. A socio-Constitutional Study, Ashish Publishing house, Delhi.

- Dicey, A.V. (2003). Introduction to the Study of the Law of the Constitution, Universal Law Publishing Co. Pvt. Ltd. New Delhi.
- Gandhi, B.M.(1992). Kulshreshtha's Landmarks In Indian Legal and Constitutional History, Eastern Book Company, Lucknow.
- Gopal, Mohan G. (2009). Reflection on legal and judicial Education, Universal Law Publishing Company, New Delhi.
- Granvill, Austin (1996). The Indian Constitution: Corner Stone of Nation, Oxford, Clarendon press, New Delhi.
- Gupta, S.P. (1997). Professional Ethics, Accountancy for lawyers and Bench bar Relations, Central Law Agency, Allahabad.
- Iyer, Justice V.R. Krisna (1989). Law Verses Justices Problems and Solutions, Deep and Deep, Publication, Delhi.
- Jain, M.P. (1987). Indian Constitutional Law,
   N.M. Tripathi Pvt. Ltd., Bombay.

# Santhom Journal of EDU. RACE St. Thomas College of Teacher Education,

Mylacompu P. O., Thodupuzha, Idukki, Kerala, India. Pin -685608, stmprincipal123@gmail.com

# **SUBSCRIPTION FORM**

Name	:
a. Individual	:
b. Institution	:
Adress	:
Pin code	:
Phone No.	:
E-mail	:
Annual Subscription	: Rs. 250/-
	Bank Details
DD No. :	Date:
Name of Bank :	
Branch Name :	

The DD should be drawn in favour of **Principal, St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu, Thodupuzha,** Idukki, Kerala.

# **Guidelines to the Contributors**

Santhom Journal of Educational Researches and Curriculum Enrichment (Santhom Journal of Edu. RACE) is a peer reviewed annual educational journal published by St. Thomas College of Teacher Education, Mylacompu, Idukki, Kerala to promote research and curricular activities among teacher educators, teachers and research scholars in Universities / Colleges and other centres of research. We are committed to publish high quality original research works including case studies, experimental studies, book reviews and surveys related to education and interdisciplinary areas. The main objective of the journal is to promote and encourage researches in various subjects related to education and to disseminate accurate knowledge for improving educational scenario.

Research Papers / Articles / Book reviews must be typed on one side of A4 size paper in MS Word using Arial font of 10 size with 1.5 spacing not exceeding 15 pages.

The first page of the Paper / Article must contain the following information:

- The title
- The name(s) and address(es) of the author(s)
- Phone numbers and e-mail address(es) of the authors
- An abstract of not more than 200 words and
- Key words.

Information on grants and funding agencies and acknowledgments if any, should be given at the end of the paper before reference / bibliography. All the references should be in alphabetical order and is made in APA Style.

Tables should be kept short, and numbered sequentially in the appropriate location. Titles and column heading should be brief and descriptive. Acronyms and abbreviations should be spelt out in full when first used in the manuscript.

Send the soft copy through e-mail **stmprincipal123@gmail.com** and three hard copies of the paper to **The Chief Editor**, **Santhom Journal of Edu. Race**, **St. Thomas College of Teacher Education**, **Mylacompu P.O.**, **Idukki Dist.**, **Kerala**, **India**, **Pin** - **685 608**.

All research papers *I* articles in this journal would undergo rigorous peer review based on initial editor screening. Acceptance or rejection will be intimated to the author through e-mail only.

Contributors will receive one copy of the issue bearing their paper/article. Submission of an article is taken to imply that it has not been previously published and it is not being considered for publication elsewhere. The author(s) will be responsible in this regard. The copyright will be reserved to the publisher.

ISSN 2455-6947

# **SANTHOM JOURNAL OF EDU RACE**

February 2022 Annual Subscription ₹ 250



A Peer Reviewed Educational Journal of

ST. THOMAS COLLEGE OF TEACHER EDUCATION
MYLACOMPU, IDUKKI DISTRICT, KERALA-685 608
www.stthomascollegemylacompu.org
e-mail: stmprincipal123@gmail.com